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ACTION NARRATIVE
TAPE 97-9, SIDE A

Number 001

CHAIRMAN OGAN called the Senate Resources Committee meeting to
order at 1:12 p.m. He said in light of the recent announcement by
the Secretary of Interior, Bruce Babbit, they asked the Departments
to give an overview of the RS 2477 issue.

MS. KATHLEEN (MIKE) DALTON, Alaska Outdoor Council, said she lived
in Fairbanks and had been an Alaskan since 1949. She had been
involved with RS 2477 research preparing files for possible
assertion by the State of Alaska. She represented the Governor®"s
Office and the Lieutenant Governor®s Office in a project in
Fairbanks which was conducted by the DNR. She worked with them on
a consistent basis until the end of the Hickel/Coghill
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administration. In that study the State 1identified about 1,500
possible RS 2477" s. By July 1 they should have an additional 35 or
40. It*s an on-going thing in DNR.

She said the federal definition of RS 2477 is "the right-of-way for
construction of highways over public lands, not reserved for public

uses, 1is hereby granted.” The history of it in Alaska is that DOT
has used it as a legal tool over the years 1in acquiring rights-of-
way for certain routes and highways. Three examples are the DeBarr

Road 1in Anchorage, The Goldstream Road 1in Fairbanks, and the May
Creek Road in the Wrangell St. Elias.

In the 1970"s, Bruce Campbell, then Commissioner of DOT, collected
information from his department, ADF&G, and DNR and developed maps
showing every route they could find that qualified as an RS 2477.
This was 1in conjunction with the State"s effort to identify lands
prior to ANILCA. In 1974 Commissioner Campbell sent a list of
1,700 possible RS 2477"s, with maps identifying these, to the BLM.
In 1985 BLM responded and thanked them for the State of Alaska“"s
Trail Atlas. They claimed that the State®s documents did not
constitute a request for nomination, that BLM could not accept
because they had no authority to accept them; that the "Atlas"™ did
not meet the requirements of the BLM manual, and that they were not
the right scale. By 1992 there was absolutely no record of

anything in BLM.

In the 1980"s the Statehood Commission did a study about statehood
issues in which they specifically talked about this issue. Senator
Coghill knew about this and when he was chairman of the
Transportation Committee he caused another study to happen which
identified RS 2477%"s in conservation units. The State Senate
published three volumes of that.

In January 1993 Governor Hickel and Lieutenant Governor Coghill
requested a budget of $720,000 to research RS 2477 rights-of-way.
Up to 12 people began the intensive effort. The next year $300,000
was appropriated to complete it. In the work each RS 2477 right-of-
way has a file that contains proof of trail use in such documents
as USGS maps, other official government maps, State and BLM land
status plats, land ownership data, historical use narratives, US
Postal dog team routes, and others. She said this was the end of

State involvement.

This summer the Alaska Outdoor Council®s Board of Directors
authorized the formation of a committee to pursue this 1issue. It
was comprised of Dick Bishop, Lisa Harbo, Byron Haley, and herself.
They talked to the director of the Northern Region BLM, Dee Richie,

and presented their requests. He said he would instruct his lands
people to accept their assertions and they would be recorded as
accepted into the office. They went ahead and filed 12 then and

after that they filed another eight or nine before July 1.
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MS. DALTON noted that there was a question regarding the statute of
limitations for certain units being July 1, 1996 so they filed
assertions in those units before then. BLM date-stamped each file
they presented. Those in the Fairbanks meridian were serialized
and placed in BLM"s rights-of-way filing system. The other 50% of
the files went to the Anchorage area where they are sitting on
someone"s desk. They did not get processed.

She said that just about every move DNR made was monitored by the
Northern Alaska Environmental Center which was there on a daily

basis. However, this summer they filed another 240 routes without
being monitored. They figured that each case cost them $3.50 1in
paperwork and copying and four hours of manual 1labor. This added

up to $800 and close to 1,000 volunteer hours.

The last 1item she wanted to mention was Secretary Babbit"s new
policy.

SENATOR HALFORD said thank you to "Mike"™ and the Outdoor Council on
behalf of the legislature and the people of Alaska.

REPRESENTATIVE HUDSON said he was concerned with the legal claim we
might have for the 1,700 "with maps trail Atlas"™ process that was
done. MS. DALTON replied that BLM did not accept them and a search
in 1992 showed that there was absolutely no record of them in BLM

offices. She reiterated that everything they filed this time was
notarized first and date-stamped by BLM. She said they had
established a legal record of action, not assertions.

REPRESENTATIVE HUDSON said he hoped an attorney could tell thenm
whether that constitutes a proper action that could be carried
forward beyond the cut-off date. MS. DALTON replied that they
believe i1t 1is.

REPRESENTATIVE GREEN asked her at any time they made the 240
filings were they led to believe that those would not be honored.
MS. DALTON answered no, but they assumed they wouldn®t be because
of the current policy.

SENATOR SHARP asked if they had received any response to inquiries
to the Anchorage BLM office as to what 1is going on there. MS.
DALTON replied that they hadn®t pursued that, vyet. She said the
one area that concerns them is the Wrangel/St. Elias area which is
very, very rich in minerals, but also very rich in historic trails
and access roads. She doubted that the Anchorage office would
return their call especially in view of Secretary Babbit"s new

policy.

REPRESENTATIVE OGAN again thanked them for their efforts in trying
to protect our rights.

Number 260
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STAN LEAPHART, Executive Director, Citizen®"s Advisory Commission on
Federal Areas, said he wanted to comment on his analysis of
Secretary Babbit®s policy on RS 2477"s. He said his knowledge was
general and he had been working with the Commission since 1982 . He
had worked with Senator Coghill identifying potential RS 2477"s.
His was a major accomplishment because before that you could barely
get acknowledgement from the agencies that those routes even
potentially existed. They have had the opportunity to work with
Secretary of Interior Hodel when he developed the policy that was
just repealed by Secretary Babbit.

He said more recently they reviewed the 1994 draft Department of
Interior Regulations that were issued and there were some serious
shortcomings with It. The new policy that Secretary Babbit issued
repealed the 1988 Hodel policy and the 1993 moratorium on
processing any RS 2477 assertions accept in cases where there was

"demonstrated compelling and immediate need to make the
determination.” Secretary Babbit reasoned that the Hodel policy
was not promulgated according to rule making procedures and is not
a rule. MR. LEAPHART said, while this is true, that the Hodel
policy was develope 1 after extensive consultation with Alaska and
the other western states. He said he was surprised by Secretary
Babbit"s new policy. Especially since he h~d met with his special

assistant, Debra Williams, 1in December and she briefed them that
because of the moratorium Congress had instituted with respect to
adopting any final regulations that the Department was going to
pull and review all the comments and then issue final regulations
that were going to be considerably different from the ones that
were proposed in 1994.

He thought this interim policy was an end-run around congressional
intent. There are a number of terms that cause them concern. It
recognizes that anyone making a claim on an existing RS 2477
continues to have the option of seeking validation of the claim in
court. Their concern is that the content of the policy will color
the <court®"s decision particularly 1in any instance where the
Department of Interior would be involved as a party 1in the action
on a claim. The policy does provide for an entity to ask the
Department of Interior to make a determination of validity 1in
advance of adoption of final regulations if there is "demonstrated,
compelling and immediate need™ for such a determination. The
policy contains no derinition or explanation of what would
constitute that. This 1is left to the discretion of the agencies
and the Secretary. If after receiving an application, the agency
doesn*t believe there 1is a compelling need, they simply will not
process the request. Some of the major problems ,uJi the policy
reflect problems that were in the draft regulations of 1994. This
includes the definition of construction which required that
intentional physical acts must have been performed with the
achieved purpose of preparing a durable, observable, physical
modification of land and that it be suitable for highway traffic.
The public users standard would only be recognized if the right-of-
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way was subsequently maintained by acts of construction.

He said the courts have recognized the validity of rights-of-way
created by the passage of vehicles, pack animals, and foot traffic.
Many trails in Alaska have been created by this type of use.

The definition of highway 1in the proposed 1994 regulations would
have to constitute a thoroughfare used prior to October 21, 1976 by
the public for the passage of vehicles carrying people or goods
from place to place. It is unclear whether some of our mail trails
and other trails used seasonally or infrequently, but nevertheless
used, would meet that definition.

The interim policy requires that any claim for an RS 2477 must
comply with State law which must comply with federal law, but

doesn"t specify which federal 1law and didn"t provide a lot of
protection for existing rights.

He hoped that Congress would not approve the final regulations if
they are anything like this policy.

DOUG BLANKENSHIP, privately practicing attorney, Fairbanks, said
his association with this issue started when he was an attorney
with the Alaska DOL for five years. As a private attorney he
handles RS 2477 cases, one of which came out of the Alaska Supreme
Court reversing a Superior Court decision saying there was no RS
2477 trail. He said he wanted to know what was the policy of the
Knowles administration vregarding RS 2477s. He has <collected
information over the years and he has a questi®"nnaire from the
Alaska Miners Association to the Knowles administration asking if
they would aggressively pursue the rights of the State of Alaska
regarding RS 2477s rights-of-way 1in courts and administratively.
The answer was yes. He wanted to know what the terms of the policy
were and 1if there was going to be -equal treatment of native
corporations and other private Jlands as compared to state and
borough [lands. Is DNR allowing Alaskans now the use of RS 2477
rights-of-way, he asked.

MR. BLANKENSHIP noted that there hadn*"t been much public
information released from the State on this 1issue.

REPRESENTATIVE HUDSON asked him to explain the decision that was
overturned. MR. BLANKENSHIP said it was concerning the Knik
Glacier trail which runs 22 miles from Palmer to Metal Creek. The
trail traversed a five acre parcel and the owner sued his clients
to keep them from crossing their parcel to get to his clients
mining parcel on Metal Creek. The Superior Court ruled that an RS
2477 was not proven. His client filed a pro se and the Alaska
Supreme Court reversed the Superior Court with some principles that
were cited in the Schultz case.

SENATOR HALFORD asked him who actually owns RS 2477s that crosses
different properties. He asked if the State has the authority to
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give it away or can the federal government take it away. MR.
BLANKENSHIP replied in his analysis the owner 1is going to be the
State, but the State 1is not the only one who can assert the right.
They are the most appropriate one. The existing right should
prevail over any other later transfer of the property.

SENATOR HALFORD asked if a private individual had to sue the State
as well as the federal government if his right has been bargained
away . MR. BLANKENSHIP replied that if the State vacated any of the
rights-of-way that would be a disposal, and the Alaska Constitution
says there has to be a public process which would bring people with
concerns forward, and hopefully it would be preserved for the
public to use.

VIRGINIA STONKIS, Legislative Finance, said she had identified for
the committee appropriations that were specifically for RS 2477
activity. DNR, DOL, and ADF&G are the agencies that she has
figures on, but the DOT report was arriving as she left for this
meeting. Two appropriations $700,000 and $320,000 totalled about
$1,000,000. Those that are starred are clearly RS 2477
appropriations. Those that are on state®"s rights that might
include RS 2477s were put on the list for their information.

TAPE 97-9, SIDE B

BARBARA HJELLE said she had been representing Garfield County in
Utah on RS 2477 issues for the last 11 years. She said current
federal regulations provide that the Department of Interior can
only regulate rights-of-way in so far as they don"t diminish or
reduce any right conferred by the grant (RS 2477). Furthermore,
she said, if you look at the Dbackground materials on those
regulations, the Department of Interior made it very clear that it
was not the intent to reduce or diminish these rights at all and it
was their intent to rely on prior existing regulations that were in
effect before the repeal of RS 2477 to interpret the grant. Those
regulations made it clear that the grant was based on state law and
that there®s no roll for the federal government to play 1in
acknowledging or documenting the rights-of-way. She thought it was
clear that Department of Interior was seeking to take over a
dominance that it had never sought to take before and for which
there is no basis in law. These actions, including the Babbit memo
are in direct violation of the existing published regulations of
the Department of Interior.

Looking at the Babbit memo, what®"s not said is more significant
than what is said. The definitions are in the proposed
regulations, but are not covered in the memo. It is also implied
that if you don"t either go to court or process a right-of-way by
persuading the Department of |Interior to approve 1it, you can"t
exercise your right legally. People 1in Utah have been exercising
their right anyhow, and they are now being sued.
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MS. HJELLE said that she believed it was the state®s duty to stand
up for the rights of 1its citizen and it didn"t mean going to the
Department of |Interior for acknowledgement of those rights and
permission to exercise them.

She said the statute of limitations doesn®"t defeat their rights.
She suggested having a well-thought-out Department of
Transportation plan and exercising the right through that plan.
Where there 1is a plan, BLM is required to coordinate its actions.

She said Utah 1is intervening on all the lawsuits to protect the
state™s interest. Their governor has tried several times to
negotiate or find constructive solutions with the Department of
Interior and Secretary Babbit, but those actions have been
rebuffed.

SENATOR HALFORD asked if they were currently being sued on specific
actions on specific roads. MS. HJELLE answered yes and they were
early in the process and were operating under an incerim agreement
between the parties.

SENATOR HALFORD asked if there was any other kind of restraining
order in effect now other than what they had agreed to. MS. HJELLE
replied that for several roads there 1is an agreement 1in place.
Garfield County has been told by a Judge not to couch its roads
until he says otherwise. There 1is no written order, but they are
honoring his request.

SENATOR HALFORD asked how 1long it would be before they got any
final decisions at the U.S. District Court level. MS. HJELLE said
it is really hard to predict; she thinks the federal government
wants to win. If they go to trial, it may be 1in early 1998.

SENATOR HALFORD asked if they have any private user cases where a
user of the RS 2477 road is the person who 1is 1in the 1initial suit
or have they joined in the county®"s existing lawsuits. MS. HJELLE
answered that they don"t have private users who have joined yet.
SENATOR HALFORD asked her if she could make suggestions to the
State of Alaska on this issue. She said she has been impressed with
the work the State of Alaska has done to research and document the
RS 2477 1issue. She thought that was absolutely essential. The
historical evidence has to be put together. She thought we also
needed to exercise our rights.

REPRESENTATIVE HUDSON asked if she had determined if there was any
congressional solution or relief in this matter. She thought it
would be very problematic primarily because the environmental
groups and the Department of Interior wage a propaganda campaign
which is so confusing that it is difficult to come to a
constructive conclusion that way. She hoped that congress might
sometime say you can"t change the status quo of your regulatory
provisions and that you have to honor them as they stand today.
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SENATOR LINCOLN asked if she knew of other states dealing with this

issue and were they taking a different approach. MS. HJELLE
replied that the only other state she hears from is Ildaho and she
hears from individuals, not the state. She thought the DOl was
focusing on Alaska and Utah for two reasons. They are both large
areas having few access roads now and they want to close them off
entirely. They down-play the issue in other states.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if there are opportunities available for her
to bring a writ of mandamus action against the government itself
demanding and having the federal courts forcing the federal
governments to pass and enforce the laws on its books. MS. HJELLE
said she hadn"t tried that because her philosophy 1is that
permission is not required of the federal government to allow a
local government to exercise vested property rights.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if she had filed suit directly on behalf of
the state against the federal government to enjoin the extra legal
action being taken by the Secretary of Interior for which he has no
legax authorization. MS. HJELLE replied no, but it is an issue 1in
the case. SENATOR TAYLOR asked if that was what they were asking
for from the court. MS. HJELLE replied yes.

REPRESENTATIVE OGAN thanked Ms. Hjelle for her comments.

Number 328

MR. ROBERT BOSWORTH, Deputy Commissioner, ADF&G, stated they are
not the lead agency 1in this matter.

THE FOLLOWING IS A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT

MR. BOSWORTH: In the years after ANILCA was passed, ADF&G
coordinated the State®"s involvement in review of federal plans for
parks, refuges, wild and scenic rivers, etc. Since that time the
Department has been perhaps the most active of the State agencies
that has been involved in the review of those plans - specifically
in recent years in the Division of Governmental Coordination. This

has include monitoring federal land management plans, regulations,
and policy documents.

Our emphasis has been to pursue <changes 1in those documents as
necessary to assure State management of fish and wildlife and the
public®s ability to access federal lands as guaranteed by ANILCA
and other statutes. As part of this progress, we have also
participated with DGC to assure that these federal Iland plans and
other documents recognize the State"s RS 2477 rights-of-way.
Obviously, the public cannot make use of fish and wildlife if they
can"t get to them.

This gets wus well to the documentation 1issue which was so
appropriately highlighted by the woman from Utah. We have
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participated for a number of years in the documention of rights-of-
way . I suspect if there 1is an individual 1in the Copper Basin or
the Wrangell Mountains area that was contact by a State agency with
regard to their personal knowledge of historical, traditional,
trails, it was probably someone for ADF&G who made that phone call.

During the early 1990"s DNR and DOT participated in the CIP project
which documented several hundred RS 2477s for possible assertion.
The Department staff assisted DNR"s compilation of data on these
routes whenever possible by locating historical use information,
identifying priority routes, and in many cases interviewing
witnesses. Over the last few years the Department has continued to
be 1involved 1in monitoring federal and state agency actions to
assure the rights-of-way are appropriately recognized. This has
included participating in policy discussions with the Governor®"s
Office, evaluating litigation options with the Department of Law,
assisting in preparing testimony for congressional hearings, and
coordinating with other states 1in responding to actions by the
Secretary®"s office. Again, | think Ms. Cunning can speak to some
of the specifics of those activities.

We expect to continue our involvement 1in RS 2477 issues, including
helping to identify traditional access routes, appropriate right-
of-way quiet title assertions, and helping to evaluate further
litigation optxons with the direction the Department of Law.

So in brief, our Department®s involvement 1in the State®s RS 2477
efforts 1is a small, but we consider, an important part of our
overall effort in the area of access. We believe we"ve been doing
a good job in addressing access issues where they arise around the
State. Although, 1 should point out that our concern is focused on
access for the purpose of hunting and fishing rather than general
access. That"s all 1 have for this time.

SENATOR TAYLOR: why are you only focused on access for fishing and
hunting purposes, if you“"re the only agency 1in the State that"s
heading this up. Do we have no 1interests in this State 1in
timbering, mining, basic transportation corridors, or are we only
going to focus upon some pathway that may getme back into anice
trout way.

MR. BOSWORTH: First of all 1 didn"t mean to give you the
impression we are the only agency that®s 1involved 1in this area.
But we are restricted by our funding source -namely the fish and
game funds that are used for this purpose.

SENATOR TAYLOR: Is someone else duplicating your efforts only
they*re looking at it from a highway perspective at DOT, and
someone else from maybe a parks perspective at DNR, and. ..

SENATOR LINCOLN: Just real quickly, vyou said that you had
documentation and that®"s been ongoing. How many cases or access
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projects have you filed or that you®"ve documented.

MR.BOSWORTH: Mr. Chairman, Senator Lincoln, that sounds Ilike a
qguestion I1°d like to defer to Tina Cunning, 1i1f she®"s available in
the Anchorage office. She"s been directing our access project for
several years now. Tina, are you there?

MS. Cunning: I"d like to answer the earlier statement first and
that is we do net duplicate efforts with other agencies. We have
worked very much as a team with DNR, DOT, and DEC. We have not
operated independently. To answer Senator Lincoln®s question, we

do not do anything independently of that group except that we did
conduct the Wrangell/St. Elias traditional access study and are
about to publish the Kenai Refuge traditional access study. These
are not specific to RS 2477. We all see ANILCA access as occurring
in those areas.

SENATOR LINCOLN: As follow-up, perhaps I misunderstood. I thought
you said you were helping with documentation with individuals that
have the access problem with hunting and fishing 1in regard to RS
2477 . Did I misunderstand?

MR. BOSWORTH: Mr. Chairman, Senator Lincoln, I think I1°11 ask
Tina, again, to clarify that. My understanding is that it is part
of the larger access project as was 1indicated recently focused in
the Wrangel/St. Elias area. We have been documenting it with local
help - the situations where a specific trail or a specific
transportation corridor has had use whether or not it"s officially
recognized. We"re doing the documentation in that case. We have
done, as | understand, hundreds, we®"ve 1identified hundreds of
trails in that process.

As far as working with people on specific cases or claims, I°m not
aware that we"ve been involved in that part of, say, an individual
action.

CHAIRMAN OGAN: Ms. Cunning, did you have a comment on that?

MS. Cunning: We do assist individuals who call our office with
problems or questions related to access primarily on federal lands.
That*s not helping them in Jlitigation cases, but letting an
individual know what their rights are.

REPRESENTATIVE GREEN: My question was similar to what Senator
Lincoln asked. It seems to me that as far as RS 2477 was
concerned, what might have been an access characteristically or
historically for fish end game might have already been done. I°m
wondering now if there are resources being expended where 1 would
think DOT or DNR might be the 1lead agencies. Are you still
expending funds to look for prior traditional access for fish and
game as it deals with RS 2477? What | thought I heard was more of
a current nature of accessibility.
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MS. Cunning: The access research we"ve been doing has been not
specific to RS 2477s and we make every effort to go through and
limit our searches of documents which have already been prepared by
other agencies before we ever set foot out of libraries that aid in
documentation. What we have 1is [indisc] on federal lands where
there"s certain federal access rights such as Title 11 of ANILCA
that we believe these restrictions are not based on and so there"s
documentation of traditional access. This is to protect access for
subsistence for commercial fishing.

REPRESENTATAIVE HUDSON: Ms. Cunning, | suppose this 1is for you.
Who would we refer as being in charge of this multi-agency effort
to pursue the State"s interests in the RS 2477 1issue? Obviously,
you*ve got a part of 1it. I suppose DNR, certainly DOT, and other
agencies. Does the administration have singular plan that could
give us what the goal of that plan is, what the current status is,
and what the total funding might be so far - a status report?

MS. Cunning: The Governor is in charge and 1 would defer to DNR
who has taken the lead in all the RS 2477s.

REPRESENTATIVE HUDSON: So then, DNR 1is the lead agency, 1is that
correct?

MS. Cunning: Yes, that"s correct.

CHAIRMAN OGAN: Ms. Cunning, 1 have a question for you. This is
Chairman Ogan here. What should we be doing that we"re not - in
your opinion. I don"t want to get you 1in trouble with your boss.
MS. Cunning: I*m sorry, sir, you cut out for a minutes there.
CHAIRMAN OGAN: There"s static. I think 1 saw it 1in a movie
somewhere. What should we be doing that we®"re not.

MS. Cunning: I thought you didn"t want to get me in trouble.
CHAIRMAN OGAN: Well, I tell you what, we"ll jJust save that

question for your boss or for all the bosses.

SENATOR HALFORD: I think we should be a little more specific.
What should we be doing with regard to fish and game and
recreational access to better protect State"s interests that we may
not be doing? Any suggestions?

MR. BOSWORTH: If that"s directed at me, Mr. Chairman, 1°°d be happy
to respond. One of the most successful projects we"ve been
involved wich recently I°"ve already referred to at least twice now
which is the Wrangell/St. Elias access project. It was a focused
effort with staff under Ms. Cunning®s direction that established
precisely the kind of documention that can help the most - now, or
for all 1 know, indefinitely into the future to identify rights-of-
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way and traditional access routes that either the State or an
individual may choose to pursue. It was an intensive effort that
took a couple of years, as | wunderstand, to accomplish. It
involved a computer mapping effort which, again, archived the
specific trail sites. In my mind that was a tremendously valuable
project that -- and developed a model and a format that could
easily be applied elsewhere in the State where we have probably an
equal number of traditional access routes that have not been
documented.

SENATOR LYDA GREEN: How many routes has Fish and Game actually
documented?

MS. Cunning: That"s a hard one to answer because a lot of the use
areas were not routes per se, but for example, were airplane
landing areas or dog team routes, or pack animal routes that were
not necessarily consistently over the same route each year. This
is an attempt to document traditional access prior to the 1980
Parks and Recreation as opposed to RS 2477 which has a different
criteria. We use the RS 2477 information that had been prepared by
DNR and DOT extensively before we went out and did additional

documentation of these landing areas or routes of access. 1"d be
happy to mail a copy of these documents to any of the committee
members who would like to have copies. The GIS maps are

phenomenally detailed.

CHAIRMAN OGAN: Ms. Cunning, maybe you could mail it to the
committee chairman at the House and Senate Resources and we can

make it available to the members.
MS. Cunning: Will do.

SENATOR TAYLOR: Just to follow-up on Senator Green®"s question.
Did I hear you indicate there was a distinction in that which was
selected as a route or a trail depending upon whether or not you
were Jlooking at the route or trail under the terms of ANILCA or
under the terms of RS 2477 and, | guess, my broader question is how
many routes have we 1identified or were 1initially identified and
then what happened to those? In other words, 1is someone making an
executive decision within the department as to which ones are going
to be quote true routes and we are going to log those and work
towards making certain that they"re protected or is someone making
a judgement <call about which ones are valid 1in that person®s
opinion and which ones are not? I guess it"s two questions. Is
there a distinction between the two laws and the way you look at
these things and is there an administrative override decision made
about what®"s going to show up on the final |list of trails and
routes?

MS. Cunning: I can"t answer your question in relation to the RS
2477 work group that DNR headed up and how they actually made their
cuts and what fits the final list of 500 or so. In terms of our
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documentation of the traditional access routes and areas, we
documented it all. IfT there was any written or verbal
documentation for individuals of use prior to the 1980s, we rarely
documented 1it, we made no phone calls for documentation.

SENATOR TAYLOR: So the other question, was there a distinction
between the review process you went through under ANILCA and the
review process you went through under RS 24777

MS. Cunning: The RS 2477 process that DNR headed up has a lot
stricter criteria for determining if we want to pursue it or not.
The statutory direction under Title 11 and 811 under ANILCA were
protecting traditional and subsistence access is much more general.
The criteria under the statute 1is whether or not it simply was
generally occurring in the area at the time of designation. That"s
a very loose criteria compared to RS 2477s.

SENATOR HALFORD: Is there an intertie between RS 2477 accesses and
the Section 17 access provisions in the Claims Act?

MR. BOSWORTH: Mr. Chairman, if that"s directed at me, 1 don"t know
the answer to that. Perhaps Ms. Cunning knows. If not, perhaps
Commissioner Shively.

MS. Cunning: I can answer it, but it would be far better to be
answered by the Department of Law.

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the record my
name 1is John Shively. I"m the Commissioner of Natural Resources
and prior to my taking over as Commissioner, DNR was, as has been
indicated by [indisc] and ethers who have been put in charge of the

documentation portion of the RS 2477 effort. I"d like to make a
couple of comments. I think the lawyer from Utah made one - |
guess there"s a little bit of confusion about. These rights really
exist now. We have these rights-of-way. It"s not like a homestead
where you have to go out and apply for them and Bruce may want to
spend some time on this, but they really do exist now. I think one

of the differences between us and Utah and some other states 1is
that in many cases down there, they are actually dealing with roads

- real roads. We are, for the most part, dealing with uses that
created trails and require much more indepth documentat-i on in terms
of past usage because they are not as well identifier. I also
think it"s important as | think others, 1including Mr. Blankenship
have mentioned to talk about - or just to mention that really - RS
2477s are not necessarily a panacea for all our transportation
needs. And I would just point out that two of the major
development projects in the State, Prudhoe Bay and Red Dog, did not
and, I don"t think, could have used RS 2477s. IT there"s some
question. ..

TAPE 97-10, SIDE A [BEGINS MIDSPEECH]
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COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: ...when I came on beard the capital
projects, and | think there was pretty close to a million dollars
if not a little over appropriated over two or three years by the
Legislature to work on the kind of documentation that Mike Dalton

and others have talked about. That project was just coming to an
end, 1 think, at the end of my first partial fiscal year in office.
That was centered in Fairbanks, there was specific staff dedicated
to 1it, and that project came to an end. As a result of that
project, there were about, I think, 1,200 sort of nominations, or
what we thought were serious nominations of trails or rights-of-
way, and 1 think we"ve now documented around 500 that we think we
have enough documentation to say these are legitimate RS 2477
rights-of-way. We are still working on that. It was sort of a

crash project.

There were perhaps a number of differing philosophies as to what
constitutes a qualifying route, so for the last year we"ve
basically been going back reviewing all the work that was done on
these files, updating it, and then seeing on some of the other ones
that we thought were maybe close calls as to whether or not there®s
some documentation that we could get up. I think the attorney
general will talk about our litigation strategy, but once we"re
actively 1involved in litigation, then it will be the job of the
Department of Natural Resources to take these files that we"ve been
working on and provide them as a major part of the litigation.

We are, however, continuing that effort and among other things
we"re sending a staff member to Anchorage to go further into the
federal archives and the archives at the Anchorage Museum of
History and Art. ITf we were able, as the woman from Utah said, to
negotiate a reasonable approach on these RS 2477 rights-of-way with
the Department of Interior, a lot of this work probably wouldn"t be
necessary. But I think that the department has clearly thrown down
the gauntlet and, most recently, with the secretary®"s new policy I
think we were perplexed about the timing of 1it, we were perplexed
about the lack of consultation, and we were perplexed about the
need for doing anything at this time, particularly given the action
that had been taken by Senator Stevens in the appropriations

language. However, the secretary saw to do what the secretary saw
to do.

A couple of other things that we"re working on. We"re continuing
to try to update our GIS information so that the trails appear on
our mapping system. We are continuing to work the data base that's
the basis of that. We have a volunteer that i1s a masters student,
who 1is working on developing a WEB page for us so that we will have

information available through that media that will talk about the
history of the project; will talk about what policy guidelines we
might have; frequently asked questions about RS 2477s; 1list the
publications that might be available; how people can nominate a
trail; and how they can provide us further information on trails
they feel are important.
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We do actually, sort of, manage RS 2477s. Ac least we have
regulations, although as 1°ve mentioned, they®"re unlike 1in Utah
where you actually have a roadway that you might be really
managing. I would say that we are managing, sort of, as we do a
lot of the state®s land given our Ilimited resources, somewhat by
default, but there are regulations on the books relating to RS
2477s and how they are to be managed, and access is allowed by the
public on RS 2477s. However, for sort of more traditional uses as
with other state Jlands, major activities like bringing heavy
equipment on or upgrading the RS 2477 to a road would require a
state permit.

Mr. Chairman, the other thing 1 would Ilike to say because it
answers some -- 1 think this really has been, in terms of the
collection of the information, a major team effort. We"ve

certainly gotten some good direction from the Department of Law 1in
some of the criteria we looked at, but the real work has been done
by people at Fish & Ganme, people at the Department of
Transportation, people at DNR, and then people like Mike Dalton and
other people, people in the mining community and others who have
gone out of the way to help us find ways to document the RS 2477s
that we have identified. So, Mr. Chairman, I would be happy to
answer any questions.

CHAIRMAN OGAN: Senator Taylor.

SENATOR TAYLOR: One -- 1is the Yunik [ph] River wagon road part of
the your 500 you"ve selected?

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Yes, it is on our list.

SENATOR TAYLOR: The only other question | would have would be --
you 1indicated that before a person would have a right to continue

to use or expand the wuse, I guess, of an RS 2477 trail -- say
wanted to walk a piece of heavy equipment into his mining claim
that he has been walking to and from for years --he would have to

have some permit from the state to utilize his trail?

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: I don"t know that we®ve had a 1lot of
experience with that, Mr. Chairman, Senator Taylor. A lot of what
we have documented are trails that are not currently 1in use, and 1
think Nancy Welch, who 1is with our Fairbanks office, 1is on line.
Nancy, have we had any experience with people that are currently
using the RS 2477s that have had to get permits from us to continue
that usage?

NANCY WELCH, Regional Director, Division of Land, Department of
Natural Resources: Yes, Commissioner Shively, we have 1issued some
permits for RS 2477s where they®ve wanted to construct.

SENATOR HALFORD: She said "wanted to construct"” and that was a
different question.
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COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Yeah, Nancy, the question was whether or not
-- lets say that the person had been running a Cat back and forth
over an RS 2477 and we identify it as an RS 2477, have we then gone
out and asked them to apply for a permit they didn"t used to have
to get?

NANCY WELCH: That is correct. On the [indisc.] trail in
particular, last year we closed it for a portion of the season and
we required permits for heavy equipment use on that trail.

SENATOR TAYLOR: I guess that"s what 1 was getting at, and | didn"t
understand where anybody thought they had the authority to do that
since it is a federal law and the right exists from that law to the
person who 1is using it.

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Well, Mr. Chairman, and | don"t want to try
to practice law here, but it"s a federal law that gave the state
the right. But the state, 1in order to get that right, had to pass
its own legislation, and the first piece of legislation that
related to this was passed by the territorial government, || think
in 1923. And one of the things that we®"ve argued very strenuously
with the department 1is that the management of rights-of-way are
under state law, not under federal law, so we do have the right
and, 1 think, as a government the responsibility to manage these
rights-of way.

SENATOR HALFORD: Well, you know, 1in the real world of applications
of how the -- if you look in the Iditarod district, 1in the Minto
Flats disti"xct, in the whole area south of Ruby, they may not have
used a road for 40 years, but you see it and you see the equipment
at the end of it and the mining operation 1is still there. And it
may be once every 10 years that a piece of equipment has to go back
and forth across that, but 1 think they would be violently opposed
to not being able to use that and not saying that was clearly an RS
2477 . They"re more visible on the ground than the dog sled mail
routes were.

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Well, Mr. Chairman, Senator Halford, that"s
somewhat true, but they are not their rights-of way, they are
public rights-of-way and the state manages public rights-of-way.
For instance, I can*t drive my snow machine on the highways.
That®"s a management decision that we have made for safety reasons
and in order to protect certain resources in ways that perhaps they
didn®"t used to be protected 40 years ago. We may need to regulate
-- | mean, 1 think that in these cases where people ask for the
right to do this our inclination is to give the permit, not to not
give them 1it. But that®"s our current regulations and we operate
under those regulations.

SENATOR HALFORD: Okay, let"s take one of these that"s fairly
complex. Again, you leave a community with a piece of heavy
equipment and you®"re trying to go to some place that"s 60 miles
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further away. It"s got a state land segment, 1it"s got a private

land segment, it"s got a Native selection segment, it"s got a
federal segment, and 1it"s got a federal segment with added
restrictions. Now, it sounded like the best, or at least the Utah
advice was use it and let somebody else sue you. Now where 1is the

state going to come down 1in the five different law suits filed
against the guy that used it.

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Well, Mr. Chairman, Senator Halford. First
of all, under the theory as | understand it, it"s a legitimate RS
2477, we currently own it, so the only person that that individual
would have to come to is us for a permit because we manage the RS
2477, the Native corporation doesn"t, the federal government....
Now I"m not saying that when we did that if part of that was across
Denali National Park that the Department of Interior wouldn-"t

attempt to do exactly what they*ve done 1in Utah, in fact | suspect
they would. They would try to stop it. If we thought 1t was
legitimate, you know, depending on where we were with the

litigation and everything else, we might or might not support the
person in their attempts to combat the federal government 1if the
federal government took them to court.

SENATOR HALFORD: Okay, lets carry our example to -- and lets say
this 1is one of the routes on the 500, or whatever it is, that have
been clearly documented and the data base 1is there so that the
factual questions of prior use have been answered, but that this
route includes state land, private non Native,private Native and
federal land. Will you treat all of that land thesame way 1in
issuing the permit if the trail 1is of the same use and history 1in

the whole group?

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: At this point, Senator Halford, we treat the
whole trail the same way. I think that as we get into this and get
into more management, notification of people who, particularly
private land owners, | think it would be appropriate, you know, if
people were applying for permits. The other thing that 1 think 1is
important that -- lets go back to the Fish & Game examples -- that
an RS 2477 trail across private lands does not give the person the
right to shoot anything on those private lands just to get from one
set of public lands to the other set, assuming that the private
land owner would want access to those lands restricted.

SENATOR HALFORD: Yeah, and 1 don"t disagree with that. One of the
considerations | think that some have heard is that the state would
be trying to force people to use section line easements instead of
RS 2477s or to buy access instead of using RS 2477s in some cases,
and 1 just wanted to make sure that wasn®"t the case.

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Mr. Chairman, Senator Halford. I have not
heard of that. There 1is a whole legal issue, as you know, about
unsurveyed section line -easements, and most of the state 1is
unsurveyed. Where we"ve vacated easements -- it"s actually often
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section line easements that we vacate in communities once there"s
an established transportation pattern, but I know nothing in policy
that 1"m aware of where we"re telling people to go use section line

easements. And section Iline easements work very well when 1 go
back to Nebraska to visit my wife"s family and drive on all of
those roads that are in squares. They are a little more difficult

to use up here.

REPRESENTATIVE GREEN: We have 500 and some trails that have been
delineated and we say that we have authority over those. Does it
make any difference in your estimation, and probably this should be
to the attorney general, but in either of your estimation, that if
we have exercised, such as the example that the senator has given,

some sort of decision making over trail ™a"™, but there is "b", "c",
"d" and "e"™ that we really haven"t done much with -- we maybe just
only found out about them the last year or so -- but they“"re there
and we"re still claiming them, but we haven®t done anything. Does

that make any difference as to whether the state has or has not
exercised prior authority 1in our claims for, or 1is it RS 2477 yes
or no and it doesn"t matter?

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Well, Mr. Chairman, Representative Green,
the basic underpinning of RS 2477s is usage that occurred prior to
1976 when FLMPA was passed, and so that basically gives you your
right. Once we"ve 1identified the trail, 1if we"ve got a case where
on one trail people have come to us for permits because they"re
running a Cat across and four other trails really aren"t currently
being used, that really should not affect the basic legal
underpinnings. In fact, on the other hand it will be precisely
when we start issuing some of those kinds of permits when the RS
2477s cross Native and federal land that some of these issues will
come head to head with the federal government.

SENATOR HALFORD: You know, the question of definition of "prior
use"™ -- it seems that the state policy then says that there are an
infinite number of different RS 2477s over the same route depending
on what degree of use that you decide that there was. What 1is the
previous, not so much the current, what 1is the previous federal
policy with regard to how they viewed RS 2477s prior to the Babbitt
letter.

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Mr. Chairman, senator, | can"t answer that.

SENATOR HALFORD: Okay, maybe the attorney general can. We"ll wait
until we get to him. Thanks.

CHAIRMAN OGAN: Senator Lincoln, impatiently waiting?

SENATOR LINCOLN: Yes, and this might be for the attorneygeneral,

but I"11 ask it since DNR was 1in charge of the RS 2477._.Justto
clarify for the Administration®s effortinto identifying the RS
2477s across the state, I noted thatin your little "How to
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Nominate™ of January of "94 youtalk about the one-year funding and

the documentation up to the 500 rights-of-way that you have eluded
to here of the 1,200 that were nominated. So as the general public
and | think some of us within this building here don"t feel that
the Administration has been dragging their feet in identifying and
filing these particular parcels, 1°d like to hear your response on
why from "94 on, -- and | know someone eluded to the funding that
was received -- but why 500 cases were sort of stopped in "94 and
there haven®t been anymore added to the list since then. I would
ask that in that question -- we heard, and I don"t know if Mike was

representing the Outdoor Council, but that the Wrangell-St. Elias
had not been filed and they wished they had time to have filed in

that area, and whether some of the Wrangell-St. Elias has been in
fact documented and 1is a part of that 500, and why the Outdoor
Council would have to scurry around really quickly to get 1 think

it was 240 areas TfTiled under this 24772

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Mr. Chairman, Senator Lincoln. Well, |
actually am not clear about the whole legal basis of the
notification of the federal government and what that means in terms

of the RS 2477 process. I do know that there 1is some discussion
about whether a statute of limitations exists on certain
conservation system units. We have identified some rights-of-way
within Wrangell-St. Elias and 1 can"t tell you how many right now.
We did not stop the process in 1994. We have continued to work the
existing files, we®"ve continued to add a few new ones, 1 think
each year. And 1 think the attorney general may want to tal when

he gets his turn about the whole assertion process and thun the
legal challenges that we may face as we take some of these things

to court.

SENATOR GREEN: I didn"t understand the last sentence that you
said. It was something "unless we go to court it would require..."
COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: What 1 was saying, | mean, there®s the whole
process of the official notification of the federal government, and
I*m not sure what -- you know, we 1in notifying them, 1if we really
believe they exist is an important part of the process if we"ve got
the legal basis. I can*t answer that, and the attorney general can

probably answer that plus some of those issues that will come up as
we start to litigate some of these where the federal government
clearly objects to our management or private land owners who might
object to our management.

REPRESENTATIVE HUDSON: For the lay person, is there a common
statement as to what the current is? You know, we heard from Mike
Dalton about the action that they®ve taken up there and what was
done back in Bruce Campbell days, and some of us are laboring under
just where we are, what do we own, what®"s our goal, are we going to
have to try each one of these, or there is sort of a blanket case?
Perhaps the attorney general can answer some of these questions,
but just, you know, if there 1is any help you can give us along
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those lines, that would be beneficial.

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Well, Mr. Chair and Representative Hudson,
we may wultimately have to litigate each and every one if the
federal government wants to fight us or private Jland owners.
Obviously, 1if the RS 2477 1is on state land, we can declare 1t and
its ours and we manage 1it. I think it is our hope as we start to
litigate some of these and also look at other litigations such as
the litigation that"s currently going on in Utah that there will be
some principles set, jJjust as there were some principles set in the

navigability issue, that will resolve a lot of these 1issues. But
I can"t predict, and particularly the RS 2477s that are in
conservation system units. I suspect, absent ultimately some kind
of negotiation with the Department of Interior, which they seenm
very unwilling to participate in,we"ll probably go one by one
because they will Jjust come up andsay "Well, you don"t have the

information to validate that that®"s an RS 2477" and then we"ll have
to say "Well, yes we do and here it is."”

CHAIRMAN OGAN: Senator Halford.

SENATOR HALFORD: If a group of citizens with very little money can
assert 240 or whatever it is of these, if we fund the money, will
you assert the remainder of the ones that you have researched, at
least file them with BLM, get them stamped 1in, and take them and
record them at the state recorder®s offices so they are actually
recorded and part of the record in thatway?

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: I don"t seeany reason why we wouldn"t do
that, senator, given what 1 understand is the governor®s interest

in this 1issue right now.

SENATOR HALFORD: I would very much like an estimate of those costs
if you would get that back to us. I think it only cost, you know,
two hours and $8 apiece for the ones done by volunteers, and if
this could be done for 10 times that, it would still be a bargain
for the future of the state of Alaska 1 would think.

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Well, Mr. Chairman and Senator Halford, |
think that what they filed was largely our work, 1if 1 understand
it, and which many of them had participated 1in.

CHAIRMAN OGAN: On that point, commissioner, is there any reason
why a citizen®s group had to pick up that ball and run with it?

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: They felt it was necessary to do and we
hadn*t gotten there, and that"s all 1 can tell you.
CHAIRMAN OGAN: Is that a matter of an internal policy call fronm

the third floor or groups that are influencing the third floor?

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: No, | think it"s more a matter of the fact
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of different priorities within the department and where we place
our workload.

CHAIRMAN OGAN: Thank you, sir. Any other questions of the
commissioner? Hearing none, last, but certainly not least, the
attorney general of the state of Alaska, Bruce Botelho.

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name 1is
Bruce Botelho, attorney general. Before 1 get into my more
prepared remarks I would comment that this has been a very

impressive hearing in terms of the caliber of people you brought
beginning with Mike Dalton, who more than any other person has been
associated with the RS 2477 1issue in this state, and ending in
terms of the private participants with Barbara Hjelle with whom my
staff has worked, and, 1in particular, Elizabeth Barry who 1is the
assistant attorney general who heads our Natural Resources Section
in Anchorage and which includes our statehood defense component.
Ms. Barry 1is in the room here today and she is certainly available
to elaborate on questions that I°m unable to answer. But I would
note that both Ms. Hjelle and Ms. Barry have worked together in
Washington, D.C., not only in testifying against efforts by the
Department of Interior to unduly restrict the vindication of state
rights of RS 2477, but also to work with the respective delegations
of Utah and Alaska in fashioning some congressional solution.

I think that as I1"ve heard the testimony today there®s probably
been three or four questions that are overriding which 1 will,
during the course of comments, try to address, but 1 think probably
the beginning point relates back to Chairman Hudson"s comments
about the process, whether we have to litigate each and every one
of these issues, and where does that take place.

As | think others have amply made clear, the RS 2477 statute was
one first enacted in 1866 and it was repealed in 1976, but with the
understanding that it did not in any way extinguish rights-of-way,
construction of highways that had taken place prior to that date.
The Department of Interior did adopt regulations, and in addition,
in 1988, most importantly | think 1in terms of what the current
secretary of Interior has done, Secretary Hodel adopted in December
of 1988 a policy which was the result of extensive negotiations
between Alaska and other western states about how those regulations
would be interpreted 1in Interior and taking 1into account 1issues

that were of particular concern to Alaska. And 1 think one most
importantly highlighted was the definition of what constituted a
highway.

Early on in the Clinton Administration, be Inning in about July of
1993, Secretary Babbitt first indicated hxs 1intention to move on
regulations within the Department of Interior to bring RS 2477
under control by which he meant that regulations would have the
effect of restricting the definition of "construction"; the
definition of "highway"” would attempt to 1impose a very specific
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process for having the RS 2477 adjudicated; and perhaps most
importantly, from my perspective, trying to do a cutoff date after
which no more RS 2477 rights-of way could be established.

The consequence -- well, the next step elaborated on was his
follow-through on that announced 1intention which was to adopt
regulations, which took place 1in 1994. And that led to actions by
Congress in 1995 and 1996 where our staff, the Administration,
returned to Washington, D.C. to work with our delegation 1in
ultimately getting language which prohibited the secretary from
implementing any such regulations, and we thought obviously a very
successful effort until 15 days ago when the secretary announced a
policy which in many respects attempts to reimpose by this policy
statement what he could not do in the regulatory process that he
already initiated and had blocked by Congress.

The reaction of this Administration and this, | think, directly

relates to one of Doug Blankenship®s concerns: what is the policy,
what 1s the position of the Knowles Administration with respect to
the action of the secretary. I think I can make it fairly plain by

a statement which the Governor included in his address in Fairbanks
the day before at a combined meeting of the Chamber of Commerce and
the Fairbanks Rotary, and that is as follows:

"We will fight this 1ill-advised policy on three fronts:
first, I1"ve directed the attorney general to pursue all our legal
options in halting implementation of the secretary®s new policy;
second, we will present test cases that have broad Alaska support
to administratively challenge the secretary®s new policy to the
Department of Interior; and third, we will work with our
congressional delegation to resolve the 1issue legislatively."”

The Governor®"s three-prong approach, 1 think, brings into focus the
fact that there are two fundamental avenues by which we in
litigation may achieve a final determination on our RS 2477 rights-
of way. The first is in the courts, and those can happen both 1in
federal and state, although, again, 1if it implicates federal lands
currently held by the federal government, those must be done 1in
federal court though we have RS 2477 claims that do not run over
current federal 1lands, but make it a variety of private or quasi
governmental instrumentalities. The second avenue, and it"s the
one to which Secretary Babbitt®"s latest action most applies, and
that"s to do it administratively 1in front of the Department of
Interior.

Now some people, including Babbitt, would suggest that we shouldn®t
be very concerned about this particular policy because it really
only applies to the Department of Interior, and, 1in fact, there"s

nothing new. We have a moratorium in the department and therefore
no one 1is being blocked in the vindication of their rights that
they weren*t a day before this new policy. What troubles us most

is in the language of the policy itself is the fact that we expect
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to see this policy reflected 1in the advocacy by the federal
government trying to persuade federal courts, 1in particular, that
this represents the views of the Department of Interior for which
deference snould be given. And sc , while it has been portrayed by
the secretary as rather an innocuous <confirmation of previous
policy that should not "ave any adverse effect on any party, our
concern again is that it will be used to buy the federal government
in arguing 1its position in cases that are brought in court.

We specifically intend, as the Governor has announced, to try and
challenge that policy by bringing cases directly to the secretary
of Interior in the administrative process so that we can directly
challenge that policy. But we also intend to file, and we expect
to be doing that within the month, test cases primarily in federal
court as an alternative.

Let me talk next about what we have been doing in an ongoing way.
There has reference to the case Schultz versus the United States,
which was originally decided in the Ninth Circuit in 1993, which,
however, was then on reconsideration and that opinion was withdrawn
and a new one was 1issued which denied a right-of-way to a person
trying to cross at Fort Wainwright where a claim of RS 2477 right-
of way had been asserted. The state of Alaska had participated as
an amicus 1in supporting Mr. Schultz in his claim, and in speaking
with Mr. Schultz®s counsel, it is their intent at this point to
petition the U.S. Supreme for assert in this latest decision. That
will not happen until there 1is a final technicality in that Ninth
Circuit case to bring it to a closure so the time will run, and we
have committed to participate as an amicus 1in that case 1in seeking
the petition for assert and to solicit assistance from other states
in joining cur amicus effort.

Mr. Blankenship made reference to the Puttycomb and Fitzgerald

case. What he did not note was that the state of Alaska had joined
as an amicus on Ms. Fitzgerald®"s behalf before Mr. Blankenship
became involved 1in the case. And again, we think we made a

significant contribution in outlining the state®s view about RS
2477 .

The third case that we have ongoing right now involves a Chickaloon
road case in which there has been an assertion that our right-of-
vay 1is over Indian country and that we do not have a right of
access. We have asserted, among other things, RS 2477 as a basis
for access that 1is nearing briefing on the merits, and I would
expect TfTull argument and a decision sometime during the course of

this year.

Three years ago 1in the process that has been discussed here 1in
terms of whittling down the 500 routes where we felt that there was
great documentation, we asserted or gave notice, and the federal
courts began using the second mechanism, setting the administrative
process, the court process, eleven particular routes that we
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thought were most promising to establish certain principles of RS

2477 rights 1in the state. We have goneback -- we®"ve actually-

prepared complaints in a coupleof those, we have not filed. We"ve
gone back through and we®ve discovered several what I would
describe as problematic issues. For example, two of the eleven,

actually as it turns out, occur entirely, exclusively on state
land, and it makes absolutely no sense to go into federal court to
establish that we have a right-of-way. Several others cross
significant numbers of mining claims, and 1 guess to be very
candid, we"re not interested in engaging in a lot of battles with
Alaskans over RS 2477. We"re trying to establish some principles
in a very measured way that has wus focusing on the federal
defendants and not looking primarily at private targets.

So though we will 1invariably be asserting them in many instances
where private parties are certainly a part of the litigation -- 1
think using the example that Senator Halford gave --it actually 1is
a very frequent one when you"re talking about a distance of 20, 30,
50, 60 miles that you are actually covering, many different land
patterns, and many different potential defendants.

Another 1issue that | think is appropriately raised and that 1is the
statute of limitations and do we have a major problem. And 1 think
Mr. Blankenship did a good job in expressing concern, particularly
with the <conservation system units: is there some statute of
limitations running. We"ve spent a great deal of time looking at
this. We were quite confident that, 1in fact, the management plans
are not of that caliber, of that character to have triggered a
conclusion that the federal government has asserted a claim adverse
to the RS 2477 right-of-way. But it will be one of the issues that
we will first be shooting out of the box again to test.

I think Ms. Hjelle"s particular remark, and 1 think reinforced by
Commissioner Shively, 1is, again, vrecognition. That the 12-year
statute of limitations only is a statute with regard to the ability
of the state to assert or to obtain quiet title. It does not in
any way affect the underlying right-of-way itself. It does not in
any way extinguish it. What i1t does do is put people at peril in
exercising the right-of-way against, 1in most instances, a federal
defendant who might well claim that that assertion 1is not well
founded.

Let me take a quick look here to see if 1"ve covered most of the

topics here. Let me, Mr. Chairman, at this point maybe take a
pause and allow you to direct questions, or, 1if it might also be
appropriate, to ask Ms. Barry at the table if there are more

specific or technical Ilegal questions to ask.
CHAIRMAN OGAN: I think Senator Halford has a question to ask.

SENATOR HALFORD: I think initially the question | have is the same
question | asked Commissioner Shively. Would the Department of Law
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support recording all of those that we now have researched in their
respective recording districts so that they are recorded 1in that
fashion and filing all of the ones that are researched adequately,
that haven®t been filed by the Outdoor Council?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO: Mr. Chairman, 1 would support that. |
think my only reservation is to not create the allusion that we

have achieved some major legal status by that activity.

SENATOR HALFORD: IfT they"re filed in the recording district, at
least there 1is notification to contrary land owners and to the
public that there is something here. You know, it may not be

finally determined at the federal level, but if it is the state’s
position that these are a priorgrant and then they are a prior
existing right, then there is an obligation that a buyer of
property or anyone else be notified of that, and the recording at

least does that.

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO: Mr. Chairman, 1 do not dispute that. I
think that point is well taken. My only point again is not to lull
the public into a false sense of security that by having taken that
initial step we have somehow adequately asserted the claim, because
ultimately that determination will be done case by case. I would
expect that we will first have to see a pattern of litigation which
will lead the Department of Interior to generalize about whatever
principles of law are ultimately established.

SENATOR HALFORD: But isn"t this a matter of if we assert and if we
use them, they have to sue us? If we don"t assert them, it we
don*"t use them, thenwe have to sue them to quiet title. I mean,
it still seems that the first step 1is record them, treat them as
they are ours, as we believe them to be, and go forward and make

.em sue us.

TTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO: Again, Mr. Chairman, 1 think the two
courses of action suggested there are both legally correct answers.
Again, 1 think the concern that has to be out there for a person,
whether it"s a private individual, a corporation or the state
itself by asserting and having it then challenged not only by the
Department of Interior but perhaps by other federal agencies, one
runs the risk of C ->rps of Engineers violations. It is a risky
business, | think, for an individual to put his or her capital at
risk, their livelihood at risk, and it"s not, 1in my view, going to
be the case that the state will 1intervene in every RS 2477 case.
There may be situations where we would have a bad actor, and we"ve
had in our state®s history situations where people have taken
bulldozers straight through streams 1in trying to assert right-of-
way claims, and the state should not 1in every instance be 1in the
position of having to endorse that activity, even if it believes
that the right-of-way 1is properly asserted in the sense that it
belongs to us.
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SENATOR HALFORD: Well, we can defend them with regard to RS 2477
while in turn we prosecute them for the abuse of the RS 2477.

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO: Mr. Chairman, we certainly could. I
think that hard issue...

SENATOR HALFORD: At least your defending them from the federal
government 1in the third parties.

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO: It*s a hard 1issue, | think, to explain
to the public, and I think most importantly, obviously we don"t
want to be 1in the position of being crosswise with most of our

citizens. That®s why 1is strikes me that one would take a more
measured approach. There may be circumstances where the Kkind of
aggressive step being taken in Utah would be appropriate. I"m not

prepared to say that that should be foreclosed altogether.

SENATOR HALFORD: Mr. Chairman, 1 have a question for Elizabeth
Barry. The question comes out of your testimony 1in Congress on
March 14, 1996, and 1 wunderstand that we have to tailor our
comments a little bit to the audience. One of the questions that
I asked Commissioner Shively and 1 was concerned with 1is that we
treat everything equally. One of the comments was "if access

across Native owned and other private land 1is determined to be
necessary through a process involving public review, right-of-way
authority other than the application of RS 2477 rights-of-way will
be utilized if available.” And 1 wonder what you meant by that, |1
mean, is there going to be a different standard applied to private
lands than there is to federal lands, or is that what that meant?

ELIZABETH BARRY: Mr. Chairman, Senator Halfcrd. My understanding
of current policy in the Administration 1is, no, there will not be
a different standard applied, but I would have to...

TAPE 97-10, SIDE B

ELIZABETH BARRY: ...Commissioner of DNR and the Attorney General
for further [indisc.]

SENATOR HALFORD: I guess, I would ask what you meant by that
statement.

ELIZABETH BARRY: There have certainly been discussions regarding
whether or not there, when there is other right-of-way authority
available whether that should be used rather than getting into a RS
2477 Dbattle. For instance, there are sometimes 17B easements
already reserved across Native Corporation land. It could be much
simpler to use an existing 17B easement for access than to get into
a protracted court battle about an RS 2477.

SENATOR HALFORD: I guess my <concern 1is that we treat all
landowners equally. That"s wunknown and 1if there 1is available,
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workable alternative access that 1is equally economic, you Kknow,
that may work and RS 2477 obviously. And Commissioner Shively has
got the best example in Red Dog. You know, you try, you work, you
go through the process, it doesn"t work. You have to go back to
Congress and get a whole special provision.

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Well, Mr. Chairman. The problem is that not

all land is the same, so you can"t treat them all the same. State
land, we don"t have to do anything. Native lands, there are other
alternatives which don"t exist on federal lands. And federal
lands, all that exists 1iIs a process. On Native lands there exists
actual dedications of rights-of-way. And so, it may be 1in order

particularly when there are disputes, because ultimately 1if the
landowner says 1its not ours and wants to fight this, we are gonna

have to prove every single one of these by litigation. There may
be a quicker way to get to the access we need than through the RS
2477 . And 1 think that was the point of discussing a different
approach to try to get to the same end.

BRUCE BOTELHO: One other aspect of it as well, Mr. Chairman, is
recognizing that not only 1is not all land the same, not all
landowners are either. And again, | would distinguish between the
federal government and others, in the sense that there 1is a

mechanism for dealing with this adversely with the federal
government in the court or the administrative process to the extent
that they contest our assertion But we also have in mind that we
would look to work with all landowners as we"re developing rights-
of-way to try and resolve short of having to go to court. And 1,
I think that is also a part of the tenor of this: is to be able to
look not only at alternatives 1in the sense of other legal
mechanisms, but to try and resolve short of litigation with
landowners the ability to access those routes.

SENATOR HALFORD: Well, as long as the basic premise 1is that

everyone 1is treated equally. I think that"s the concern that 1 had
and it was a concern that was brought to me with regard to
different classifications of land. And I realize that when you get
into 10 different mining claims and - you got one route, you got 10

different mining claims, three different Native Corporations, two
different federal units, and you"re gonna Tfight with all of them.
You may not choose to fight that one first.

BRUCE BOTELHO: Exactly, and again that"s one of the highest
priorities identified of the 11, actually cross 47 mining claims.
And its just not 1in the State"s best interest, in my judgement, to
be suing 47 holders of claims in order to assert this particular
right-of-way as being one of the first out of the chute.

SENATOR HALFORD: From a practical point of view, I absolutely
agree. But from an 1ideologically point of view, the 47 mining
claims don*"t own the right-of-way. The State of Alaska does on

behalf of all the people.
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BRUCE BOTELHO: | understand Mr. Chairman ...[indisc]

REPRESENTATIVE HUDSON: Bruce, obviously on all State property we

pretty much control that and we have property rights there. Are we
asserting any property rights on the federal RS 2477 right-of-way
lands? I mean, 1if we have property rights, perhaps 1if somebody
needed to put up a shelter or something like that. Then we would
be able to authorize that. Do we have property rights on these
trails?

BRUCE BOTELHO: Mr. Chairman, if | might defer to Ms. Barry in
terms of uses that aren”"t directly right-of-way uses.

ELIZABETH BARRY: Mr. Chairman, Representative Hudson, I don"t
believe there"s a clear cut answer to that question. You"re going
to have to look at what the scope and the width of the right-of-way
is. Just within the Alaska <context, we"ve had cases where

[indisc.] RS 2477s, but rights-of-way are set aside for road
purposes we"ve not been allowed to [indisc.] transition lines, for
instance. So, | think that®"s going to be an issue that will have
to be determined in the courts ultimately on what rights we have
besides, if any, besides getting from point A to point B.

REPRESENTATIVE HUDSON: And my second question, if I might? Mr.
Attorney General, you mentioned that you had three &essential

elements and you"ve described those: the legal challenging
Congressional, and the Governor had mentioned this. What 1f any,
I asked Ms. Hjelle, 1if they had any Congressional solutions or help
that they might recommend. Have you identified some specific

action that we might ask of our Congressional delegation?

BRUCE BOTELHO: Mr. Chairman, again Ms. Barry has worked closely
with the delegation, in particular Senator Murkowski, on this
issue. And perhaps, | could ask her again to describe the efforts
in the past. Obviously, there"s been a new suggestion today which

Ms. Hjelle had raised as a possibility of something we have not
discussed before.

ELIZABETH BARRY: Mr. Chairman, 1in the 1last Congress there were
bills introduced in both the House and the Senate that would have
put the black letter federal law that state law control RS 2477

grants. And that allowed for the more casual type of use that
prevailed over a lot of Alaska®s highways, in terms of less
restrictive definitions of construction and highway. Neither of

those bills passed and instead, there was the moratorium put 1in
place only the federal regulations taking effect. My understanding
is that nothing has yet been introduced in this Congress, but they
just got started a few weeks ago. Things are moving pretty slowly
there, at this point.

BRUCE BOTELHO: Mr. Chairman, if it would be helpful, | think we"d
be willing to provide Representative Hudson a <copy of the

JT. Resources -29- February 7, 1997



Legislative proposals that were circulated.

REPRESENTATIVE HUDSON: I would appreciate that, I'm sure both
chairman would appreciate a copy.

CHAIRMAN OGAN: Well, 1 find I'm next on the 1list so 1 have a
question for you. IT aprivate person uses a 2477 right-of-way

where there®"s no state regulations 1like on a national wildlife
refuge; would the state intervene on behalf of that individual if
he got in trouble with the feds?

BRUCE BOTELHO: Mr. Chairman, let me answer it this way.
Conceptually, the answer would be - we would do so. Having said
that, I would look at the factsof any given situation. It"s quite

clear from my earlier testimony that we have actually supported
private individuals who have asserted RS 2477 rights-of-way 1in the
state, in the courts of both the State of Alaska and the Federal

Courts. And so, as a matter of principle, we are not adverse to
lending the weight of the State of Alaska. Whether we would do it
in every case, | think would depend on the circumstances, what

legal principles would be advanced 1in the case, what are the
resources available at that particular time and again, the good

faith efforts of the individual. Sothat again we"re not in a
situation where we have a black sheep, for lack ofa better way of
describing 1it. But in principle, the State of Alaska would,

subject to the kind of concerns 1°ve expressed.

CHAIRMAN OGAN: I think 1 have one other question. At a Joint
Senate/House State Affairs Committee meeting during the interim,
between the first and second half of the session of the 18th or the
19th Legislature, you stated. There was some, quite a bit of
concern on the part of the committee members that there was only a
very small amount of these right-of-way assertions being litigated.
And you stated that, it wasn"t that big of a priority, that you had
- your first priority was the protecting children which 1is a good

cause. Do I see that there®"s, <can we from your testimony and
testimony of Commissioner Shively - that the Administration has now
shifted that position. That is now a much bigger priority with
them, now that Secretary Babbit has taken the action he has.

BRUCE BOTELHO: Mr. Chairman, | think it 1is fair to say that the
action of the Secretary of Interior has created an urgency on RS
2477. And not simply from a political sense, but our concern about
its possible impact on litigation. That has really propelled it,
obviously, to be a major concern of the Governor such that he has
put his credibility on the line on this issues. So, I would say
that there is a heightened attention statewide of the issue. And

the Governor intends to make sure the State of Alaska i1s a leader
on the 1issue.

CHAIRMAN OGAN: Well, as a comment, 1 welcome that action. I gotta
tell, to be quite honest, I see a bit of a trend of the
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Administration to take - not take a proactive stance on this and

other issues and then when we get in trouble. But 1 do welcome the
departure from the less proactive stance. And there was a question
from Senator Lincoln, the Senator Halford, and then 1 think we

should probably wrap it up.

SENATOR LINCOLN: I think it pulls very nicely to what your last
guestion was and that is if we do start to litigate, and it sounds
like we may. And we®ve got 500 documented parcels and more to come

that it seems to me that if we"re going to - if Administration is
going to have this as a priority, then we are going to have to
budget accordingly. Il don"t think that we can say that thisis

something that Administration better get on and find that we're
gonna cut the budget or that you have to then litigate [indisc.]
utilize the budget,your normal budget. I wou?d, I guess 1| would
ask what kind of a plan that you see over time and are you goingto
then come back to the Finance Committee and ask for funding to
litigate the RS 2477s.

BRUCE BOTELHO: Mr. Chairman, Senator Lincoln. We have prepared a
five year schedule of alternative scenarios. The Legislature has
funded our work in RS 2477. And we"ve anticipated that in terms of
our budget planning. So, 1°d be delighted to share that with you
and 1 don"t have that information at hand.

CHAIRMAN OGAN: And Senator Halford.

SENATOR HALFORD: Just a question from the opposite direction.
With regard to the vacation of RS 2477s, 1 know that DOT in actual
construction projects sometimes vacates pieces of an RS 2477 road
in the same sense that they also take access and they sometimes
trade with an adjacent Jlandowner to straighten out a curve or
something else. But other than those kinds of cases, are there any
cases where the state has vacated an RS 2477 and if so, how have

they done 1it?

BRUCE BOTELHO: Mr. Chairman, that question | believe would be most

appropriately directed to Commissioner Shively, [indisc.]

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Chairman and Senator Halford. I think
largely the RS 2477s that we have vacated are section line
easements which people believe are RS 2477s 1in communities. We
have not to my knowledge vacated any of the RS 2477s that we"ve
identified here, but and I don"t know; Nancy Welch, 1if you"re still

on, whether you have anymore 1information on that question than
that.

An unidentified person via teleconference stated that Ms. Welch had
left the Fairbanks office.

SENATOR HALFORD: I would like a follow-up on that question just to
know what has been vacated. Again, not the - 1 mean, 1 know that
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DOT makes, you know adjustments back and forth and when they
sometimes get something else they back away from both the PLO
easements and the RS 2477 easements when they get the other side
and finally build something to specification.

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Mi. Chairman and Senator Halford. As |1
said, the ones that 1°"ve been aware of are all section line
easements in developed communities where we have alternative
transportation.

SENATOR HALFORD: But they"re actually RS 2477s and section line
easements.

COMMISSIONER SHIVELY: Well, most people believe. I think that
there 1is a theory that a section line easement is an RS 2477
easement, it is a different kind of RS. It"s not what you think
of. I mean most people think of, when they talk about RS 2477s as
the mining trail that people wused for years, but it"'s my

understanding that 1in the territorial legislation that accepted
reservation of RS 2477s and because of the way that was written,
that section Iline easements are considered under the same law.
Bruce, you may or Elizabeth maybe.

BRUCE BOTELHO: Nodding our heads 1in agreement.

SENATOR HALFORD: I would Ilike a list of the RS 2477s that are
section line easements that have been vacated and the process by

which they"re vacated.

CHAIRMAN OGAN: And would you provide that to the House Resources

Committee as well. Well, 1f there are no other questions. 1°d
like to thank everyone that participated today. I think we had a
very in-depth and informative discussion of the issue. And thank
you for enduring the long meeting and for your time out of your
busy schedules, all of you. And with that this meeting 1is

adjourned (3:50 p.m.).
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Recent Alaska RS 2477 Investigations

In the 1970's
More than 20 years ago (1973-74) the State of Alaska, through its Department ot

Transportation, researched and recorded more than 1,500 RS 2477 rights-of-way. These were
identified and mapped. The list was forwarded to the Bureau of Land Management for
"assertion" by Commissioner Bruce Campbell. Transmittal was dated April 8, 1974.

For 11 years BLM did not acknowledge the State's submission. It was August 12. 1985
that BLM issued a memorandum referring to the State of Alaska's "Trail Atlas”. BLM claimed
that the State's documents did not constitute a request for notation in its (BLM) records, that
BLM (in any case) could not accept because BLM "had no authority to note such claims until we
received the new 2800 manual in late 1982," that the maps and other information in the State's
"atlas™ did not "meet the requirement of BLM Manual 2801.243. The maps are not of a scale and
quality which would allow us to accurately transfer the claimed trails to our records.”

By 1992. all record of that action was gone! BLM had no record of the filing..

In the mid 1980's

Senator Jack Coghill, chairman of the Senate Transportation Committee, caused to
happen a study of RS 2477 rights-of-way that fell within conservation units that ANILCA had
established. This study was published in three volumes by the Alaska Senate.

In the 1990's

In January, 1993 Govemor Walter J. Hickel and Lieutenant Govemor Jack Coghill
budgeted S720.000 to research RS 2477 rights-of-way in Alaska. Their request was approved by
the Legislature, and an intensive research program (RS 2477 rights-of-way) began in the Alaska
Department of Natural Resources. That funding supported a team of 12 researchers and natural
resource officers through fiscal year 1994. Another appropriation for S300.000 was requested
and funded. The team manpower strength was reduced about 60%.

The records comprise an impressive body of legal research. Each RS 2477 right-of-way
studied has a file that contains proof of trail use in such documents as U.S.G.S. maps, other
official government maps. State and BLM land status plats, land ownership data, historical use
narratives. U.S. Postal route (dog team) documentation, and other proof of use.



Establishing a Policy between BLM and
Alaska Outdoor Council

In the spring of 1996 the Alaska Outdoor Council board of directors authorized the formation of
a committee to begin asserting RS 2477 rights-of-wuys with the Bureau of Land Management.
That committee is comp.osed of Dick Bishop, Lisa Harbo, Kathleen Dalton and Byron Haley.

This action was taken because of growing concerns about access to state and private lands AND
because there was no apparent leadership by the Knowles administration in the State of Alaska.

Until June, 1996, BLM in Alaska had no established public process for assertions of RS 2477,
The occasional RS 2477 right-of-way which the State of Alaska sought for a transportation route
was handled on bn individual, negotiated basis with BLM. There was no public process.

AOC designed a form that identified the route with its legal location, its name, the State's ID
number, Attached to that form were the following: an inch-to-milo map with route traced;
documented historical proofofuse; width statement These documents were witnessed and
notarized before submission to BLM.

At a meeting (requested by AOC) onJune 26, BLM Interior and Northern Director Dee Ritchie
accepted AOCs assertion form. He instructed his lands agenlB to aooept our assertions. He also
instructed his agents to date stamp and sign each assertion and to serialize the assertions in

BLM's right-of-way filing system.

In the interim July-September, 1996 AOC asserted 240 RS 2477 rights-of-way. Hundreds of
hours of volunteer time went into this work. It is estimated that each assertion took a minimum
of four hours to copy, organize, notarise, and submit.. We estimate that each file cost AOC
$3.50 in basic material and copy costa. Those hours and dollars were volunteer by AOC
members. A copy ofeach case file we handled was kept in Alaska Outdoor Council records.

In September the AOC committee took a breather. We felt that the 240 rights-of-way asserted
had represented moat priority routes. We also felt that we had established a legal paper trail that

may give us standing in the fixture.

In Deoember we learned that there was a "hitch” in those ROWa sent to Anchorage (about 50%)
tor processing into the records ofthe Kateel, Seward find Copper River Meridians. The
Fairbanks BLM office serialized any route that fell within the Fairbanks Meridian, AOC has set
up another meeting with the interior BLM director at which time we will examine iur options on
those assertions that Anchorage BLM personnel did not (or would not) serialize.

NOTE: The term'Ierialize" as used by BLM means that the document has been accepted, date
stamped and entered into BLM's right-of-way filing system. A legal record has been created.



O© oo NO ok~ w N

10

2A0ROWs (RS 2477) asserted with BLM

State of Alaska RST #, trail name, and date asserted
(asserted by Alaska Outdoor Council summer 1996)

Taylor - Humbolt Trail 7/1/96
Hajdukovich - Macomb Plateau Trail
Jualin Mine Road 7/8/96
Marvel Creek Cat Trail 7/8/96

7/1/96

Taylor Creek - Serpentine Hot Springs Trail 7/1/96

Eureka - Rampart Trail 7/8/96
Harrison Creek - Portage Creek Trail
Coldfood - Chandalar Lake Trail
Chicken - Franklin Landing Strip Trail
Betties - Wild Lake Trail 7/8/96
Eagle - Alder Creek Trail

Nabesna - Chisana Trail 7/17/96

Unuk River Road 7/17/96
* Aurora Trail (Dahl - Deering)

Knik Glacier Trail 8/12/96

Akiak - Crooked CreekTrail 8/12/96

Aklakchak/Akalak - Phillips Bros - Russian Mission Trail

Aniak - Tuluksak Trail 8/12/96
Beaver - Caro Tralil 8/15/96
Bennett's Cutoff Trail 8/7/96
Bethel - Quinhgak Trail 8/12/96
Gethel - Kasigluk 8/7/96
Candle - Kiwalik 8/15/96
Rex Creek Trail 7/24/96
Teiaquana Trail 6/26/96
Crooked Creek - Aniak Trail 8/22/96
Kaltag - Dishkaket 8/15/96
Eagle - Circle Mail Trail 7/17/96
Egegik - Kanatak Trail 8/12/96
Elliot - Kotsina Trail 7/8/96
Fortymile - Franklin 8/28/96
Betzulnetas - Susiota Pass Trail
Golovin - Council Trail 8/22/96

Goodnews Bay - Togiak 8/12/96
Holy Cross - Kalskag Trail ~ 8/22/96
Hooper Bay - Scammon Bay 8/15/96

6/26/96
7/1/96
6/26/96

7/17/96

7124/96

8/12/96

Toa) of six pages: 240 Righis-of-way (RS 2477) asserted at BLM, Fairbanks, by ALASKA OUTDOOR COUNCIL. Summer of 1996
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105
109
114
115
116
117
120
121
122
124
127
129
135
139
155
156
158
159
160
161
162
164
165
168
173
179
190
194
209
213
215
220
220
226
229
230
232
256
257
260
265

Iditarod - Dishkaket Trail 8/28/96

Alatna - Shungnek Trail 8/12/96
Snowshoe - Beaver Trail 6/26/96
Kiana - Klery Creek 8/28/96
Kiana - Selawik - Shungnak 8/15/96
Kinak - Kipnuk Trail 8/22/96
Kiwalik - Noorvik 8/15/96
Kotlik - Marxhall 8/22/96
Kotsina Trail 7/17/96

Kotzebue - Noatak Trail 7/24/96

Nimiuk Point - Shungnak Trail
Larsen Bay - Karluk River Trail
Lewis Landing - Dishkaket 8/12/96
McCarthy - GreenButte Trail 7/24/96
Millard Trail 7/24/96

Nizina - Bremner Sled Road 7/24/96
Nizina - Chitina River Trail 7/24/96

Nome - Teller Trail 8/22/96
Lilliwig Creek Trail 8/28/96
Nuka Bay Trail 6/26/96
Nulato - Dishkaket Trail 8/15/96
Batzulnetas - Nabesna RiverTrail

Ophir - Dishkaket Trail 8/15/96
Ophir - Iditarod Trail 8/12/96
Paimute - Marshall Trail 8/22/96
Quinhagak - Goodnews Bay 8/12/96
Kianga River Trail 7/24/96

St. Michael - Kotlik Trail 8/22/96
Streina - Kuskulana Trail 7/124/96

Betties - Coldfoot Trail 7124/96
Teller- Wales Trail 8/22/96
Togiak - Nushagak Trail 8/12/96

Upper Landing - Bear Creek Trail
Yentna - Mills Creek Trail ~ 7/17/96
Woodchopper - Coal Creek Trail
Yukon - Kuskikwim Portage Trail
Bielenberg Trail 6/26/96
Swede Lake Trail 7/8/96
Beaver Lake via Bryan Creek Trail
Beaver - Horse Creek - Chandalar Trail
Canyon Creek - Walker's Fork Trail
Chisana - Horsveldt Trail 7/24/96

8/22/96
7/31/96

7124/96

8/22/96

718196
8/22/96

7124/96
8/15/96
8/15/96

Total of six pages: 240 Rights-of-way (RS 2477) asserted at BLM, Fair' anks, by ALASKA OUTDOOR COUNCIL, Summer of 1996
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269
270
277
282
284
286
287
290
201
299
304
305
317
319
321
323
325
326
327
332
335
338
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
348
361
363
367
367
372
374
388
391
394
397
400
405

Tanana - Allakaket - Betties 8/7/96

Circle - Fort Yukon Trail 8/5/96
Chisana - Bonanza Trail (Chisana - Big Eldorado Creek  7/31/96
Island Bay - Salmon Creek Trail 8/12/96

Steele Creek - Franklin Trail 7/31/96
Fourth of July Creek Trail  7/8/96

Fort Gibbon - Kaltag 8/12/96
The Goat Trail 7/31/96
Telaguana Trail - Nondalton Trail 6/26/96
Kaltag - Solomon 8/26/96
Wilson CreekTrail 8/5/96
McClaren River Trail 7/31/96
Paimut Portage Trail 8/22/96
Platinm CreeTc Trail 7/24/96
Nabesna - Northway Trail ~ 7/31/96
Scammon Bay-Hamilton - Kotlik Winter Trail 8/22/96
The Nizina - Chisana (Skolai) Trail 8/5/96

Goodnews - Arolik River 8/12/96
Tanunak to Umkumiut Trail 8/15/96
Togiak - Ungalikthluk Trail 8/12/96

Tuluksak - Kalskag 8/15/96

White RiverTrail 7/17/96

Lignite - Stampede Trail 7/8/96

Roosevelt - Kantishna Trail 7/17/96

Roosevelt - Glacier Trail 7/17/96

Kobi - Kantishna Trail 7/17/96

Lignite - Kantishna Trail 7/17/96

Kobi - McGrath (via Nikolai and Big River) 7/17/96
Nenana - Kantishna Trail 7/17/96

Spruce CreekTrail 7/17/96

Nizina - Chisana Glacier Trail 8/5/96
Tana River Trail 8/5/96

Kiwalik - Kotzebue 8/22/96

Portage Bay - Mt. Demian Oil Camp Trail 8/12/96
Nikolai Mine Trail 8/5/96

Nabesna River - Canadian Border 8/5/96
Merrill River - Stony River Trail 6/26/96
Ketchumstuk to Tanacross  8/26/96

Chignik Lagoon - Aniakchak River 7/17/96
Foster's Camp - Grass Valley Trail 8/7/96
Orange Hill Trail * 7/31/96

King's Country Trail 7/31/96

Total of six pages: 240 Rights-of-way (RS 2477) asserted al BLM, Fairbanks, by ALASKA OUTDOOR COUNCIL, Summer of 1996
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406
414
423
425
427
439
446
455
466
470
471
472
476
477
478
483
491
492
493
505
506
512
556
557
560
618
633
634
639
669
707
730
731
746
747
755
758
792
808
810
823
825

Johnson River - Kinak Trail 8/22/96
El Dorado Slate Road 7/17/96

Ptarmigan Creek Trail 8/5/96
Managite Trail 7/17/96
Chikaloon River Trail 8/26/96

Nabesna - Chisana (Route 2) 8/5/96
Fort Yukon - Birch Creek Trail
Ungalik - Dime Landing 8/22/96
Nation River - Rampart Trail 7/17/96

Sepertine Hot Springs - Shismaref Trail

Teller-Shishmaref (west) Trail
Teller - Shishmaref (east) Trail
Circle = Cjhalyitsik - Yukon Border

8/12/96

7/17/96
7117196
7/17/96
8/12/96

8/22/96

Fort Yukon - Christian 8/12/96

Fort Yukon - Beaver 8/12/96

Copper Creek Trail 7/24/96

Rex - Roosevelt Trail 7/17/96

Glacier - Kantishna via Caribou Creek Trail 7/17/96
Quigley Ridge Trail 7/17/96

Nilumat Creek - Towak Mountain

Shageluk - Holikachuk 8/12/96

Willow Creek Trail 8/26/96

First Chance Creek across Glacier Creek - Horsefly Creek Trail

Dikeman - First Chance Creek Trail
Rampart House - Demarcation Point
Central - Deadwood Creek Trail

Valdez - Copper CenterTrail (aka Valdez Glacier Trail, Klutina Lake Road, Craig - Henwick Road)7/17/96

Explorers Kenai RiverTrail  7/31/96

8/15/96
8/26/96
7117196

Noorvik - Selawik 8/12/96

Ninemile Point «Choris Peninsula Trail 8/22/96
Windy Creek Trail (near Cantwell) 7/17/96
Cripple Landing - Rennies Landing Trail 8/7/96
Cripple - North Fork Innoko River Trail 8/5/96
Tonsina Trail - Tonsina | ake to Richardson Highway 7/17/96
Norton Bay - McKinley Creek Trail 8/22/96
Koyuk - Bald Head Trail 8/22/96

Lake Minchumina - Kuskukwim River Trail 8/5/96
Boundary - Lassen Landing Strip Trail 8/5/96
Birch Creek - Portage Creek Trail 6/26/96
Boulder Creek Trail (near Central) 6/26/96
Graveyard Creek - Cagins Trail 7/17/96

Alfred Creek'Trtail 8/15/96

8/12/96

Total of six pages: 240 Rights-of-way (RS 2477) asserted at BLM, Fairbanks, by ALASKA OUTDOOR COUNCIL, Summer of 1996
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840

844

870

879

881

912

913

914

916

1065
1137
1169
1176
1232
1304
1343
1344
1345
1346
1349
1350
1354
1355
1365
1372
1374
1380
1393
1395
1413
1416
1467
1482
1495
1567
1571
1584
1586
1588
1590
1591
1592

Palisades Portage Trail 8/15/96

Elliott Creek Trail 7/124/96
Killeak Lake Trail 7/24/96
Twin Lakes - Jackson Lake Trail 8/15/96

Alexander's Village - Vehtenjerlo Lakes 8/15/96
North Tractor Trail from Gordon - US Border

Nuvagapak Point Landing Strip - Kogatpak PJver Trail

Poker (Pokok) Lagoon Southeast Trail 8/26/96
Tamauariak River North - Camden Bay 8/26/96
Jack Wade - Boundary 8/5/96

Snettisham - Mines Trail 8/15/96

Treadwell Ditch Trail 8/15/96

Kanatak - Becharof Lake Road 8/12/96

Malaspina Glacier TRail 8/5/96
Hoisveldt - Canadian Border 8/5/96

Nizina River - Dan Creek Road Trail 8/5/96
Sawmill Gulch Trail 8/5/96

Long Lake - Chitina River Trail 8/28/96
Glacier Creek Mines Trail  8/5/96

Kennicott Mine Trails 8/5/96

Kuskuland River-McDougall Creek Cabins Trail
Nikolai Mine - Nizina River Trail 8/5/96
Kimball Pass Trail (Bernard Creek Trail) 7/17/96
Hurtle Creek Trail 7/24/96

Klutina Boat-Landing Trail 8/5/96

Copper River Bluff Trail 8/5/96

Hudson Lake Trail 7/8/96

Copper River - Kotsina Connections Trail ~ 7/8/96
Tiekel River - Klutina River 8/5/96

Tonsina Trail (Richardson Highway to Copper River)
Chitina - Elliot Trail 7/17/96

Heming Trail 8/28/96

Homestake - Serpentine Hot Springs Trail ~ 7/17/96
Akulurak - Kotlik with Spru to Kwiguk Trail

Copper River Trail 8/5/96

Pass Creek Trail 7/31/96

Lick CreekTrail 7/31/96

Scotty Creek - High Cache Trail 7/31/96
Northway Airport - Jatahmund Lake 7/31/96
Gardiner Creek Trail 7/31/96

Deadman Lake Campground Road 7/31/96

Tanada Lodge - Copper Lake Drainage 8/5/96

8/2696
8/22/96

8/5/96

7/17/96

8/22/96

Tola] of six pages: 240 Rights-of-way (RS 2477) asserted at Bl M, Fairbanks, by ALASKA OUTDOOR COUNCIL, Summer ot 1996
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1608
1611
1623
1645
1646
1668
1669
1670
1671
1672
1673
1675
1676
1677
1684
1685
1686
1687
1689
1695
1696
1697
1699
1699
1712
1717
1737
1738
1790
1791
1794
1805
1844
1845
1846
1851

Youngstown'-Home Lake 8/22/96

Bergman - Cathedral Mountain Trail (Aiiakaket - Betties «Coidfood -Nolan Trail

Wales -Shishmaref Coastal Winter Trail

Nome Creek Mine - Steese Highway Trail

Gordon - US Border Coastal Trail

Mt. Drum Trail 8/5/96
Strelna Creek - Rock Creek Trail

Pass Creek Trail 7/31/96
Kluvesna Creek - Clear Creek Loop
Young Creek Loop Trail 8/12/96
Sourdough Hill - Nizina RiverTrail
Buck Creek Trail 8/12/96
Manker CreekTrail 8/5/96
Quartz Creek Trail 8/5/96
Slatka Creek Trail 8/12/96
Clear Creek Trail 8/5/96
Porcupine Creek Trail 8/5/96
Nugget Creek Trail 8/5/96
Berg Creek TRail 8/5/96
Roaring Creek Trail 8/12/96
Dixie Pass Trail 8/5/96
Copper Creek Trail 8/5/96
East Fork Cre”k Trail 8/5/96
Middle Fork Trail 8/5/96
St. Anne Lake Trail 7/17/96
Richardson Highway - Fish Lakes Trail
Candle - Deering Trail 8/15/96

Kotzebue - Nimiuk Point Trail

Boulder Creek - Mills Creek 7/31/96
Bellum's Crossing - Kotsina River Trail
Bellum's Crossing - Chitina RiverTrail
Chitina River - Sterlna Creek Trail
Little Melozitna Hot Springs Trail
Hutlinana Hot Springs Trail 8/5/96
Melozitna Hot Springs Trail 8/5/96
Keystone Trail 8/15/96

7117196
6/26/96
8/26/96
7/31/96
7/31/96

8/12/96

7/31/96

8/22/96

7/17/96
7/17/96
7117/96
8/22/96

Total of six pages. 240 Rights-of-way (RS 2477) asserted at BLM. Fairbanks, by ALASKA OUTDOOR COUNCIL, Summer of 1096
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Nomination and Assertion, RS 2477 Rights-of-way

To and before the Bureau of Land Management U.S. Department of Interior
rbanks, Ala

Citation: RS 2477, Section 8 of the Act of July 26, |866 Rewsed Statute 2477 (43 U.S.C. 932). Repealed October 21,1976.

APPLICANT INFORMATION

(Attach additional pages if needed)

Name ipTtnind (Clep: i)

Address

City State Zip code
Phone FAX#

Contact or Business Address City, State, Zip Telephone/FAX

'One of four members of RS 2477 committee, Alaska Outdoor Council. See attachment for additional names.

RS 2477 RIGHT-OF-WAY (ROW) INFORMATION

1) Location:

2) Name of Nominated Right-of-way:
State of Alaska RST # (if available):

3 DateAsserted:____ Certification Statement

4) By Whom: List one or more names (also see above):

I certify under penalty of perjury that the
information contained herein is true and
complete to the best of my knowledge.

5) Attached, RS 2477 ROW Historic Summary (Detailing Applicant signature (s):
construction dates, purpose of use, width etc).

6) Attached, Map scale 1:63,360
7) Attached, additional documentation (if applicable)

8) Witnesses to this assertion action: Notary: This certification was subscribed and
sworn to or affirmed before me on

day of 19 )

at

9) Assertion received by:
Signature of notary:

Name and Titlo
My Commission expires

Date



AGENCY
APPROPRIATION

Natural Resources
Ch. 79 SLA 1993, p. 18 1.9

Ch. 4 FSSLA 1994, p. 11 1 10

Ch 123 SLA 1996, p. 361.27
Law
* Ch.5FSSLA 1992, p.32,115

* Ch.4 FSSLA 1994, p. 6 123

* Ch. 103 SLA 1995, p. 34,1.30
Ch. 117 SLA 1996, p. 38, Ll
Fish & Game

* Ch. 79 SLA 1993, p. 19,1 10

Ch. 4 FSSLA 1994, p. 12,1.7
Ch. 103 SLA 1995, p. 40,1.4

* Ch. 123 SLA 1996, p. 33,1.23

* Ch. 123 SLA 1996, p. 33,1.29

TOTALS:

RS 2477 APPROPRIATIONS

* Indicates possible funding for RS 2477-specific activity

2/6/97

GF
TITLE
RS 2477 Assertion (CIP) 720.0
RSI1477 Assertions and Mapping (CIP) 300.0
RS 2477 assertions/litigation support 50.0
(CIP)
Federal lawsuits (CIP) 1,200.0
Federal litigation continuation (CIP) 750.0
Federal litigation/endangered species 900.0
act, etc. (CIP)
Statehood defense (operating) 900.0
Assert/protect state's rights to manage 300.0
Alaska's resources (CIP)
Asscrt/protect state’s rights 200.0
Assert and protect state's rights (CIP) 100.0
Protection of access to lublic waters
(CIP)
ANILCA implementation/protection of
state's rights related to navigable waters
5,420.0
[Ityirtative pititinoe Diodom

AMOUNT
Federal Other
200.0
200.0
64.1 85.9
200.0
64.1 685.9

TOTAL

720.0
300.0

50.0

1,200.0

750.0

900.0

900.0

300.0

400.0
300.0

150.0

200.0

6,170.0



dnr fin sves RS2477.XLS

Department of Natural Resources

RS2477 Appropriations
SLA93, CH79, P18, L9 720,000.00
SLA94, CH4, P11, L10 300,000.00
SLA96, CH123, P36, L27 50,000.00

total $1,070,000.00
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1 Department of IUtvural Raaourcaa
2
1 Allocations
« Energy Basin Analysis (ED %)
5 AltS Royalty Oil Pries Reopensrs
I ((00)s:1%
7 Prudhoe Day Reservoir Models
. |D%)
9 RS 2¢?7 Assertion (D 99)
Nd/NiarsUUbs4 Ipim*) —G-4—

(cont.|

12 Chugach State Pauk e Park Match
1) Suppert »BD %9)

14 Rabbit Lake/flattop Trail (D %)
15 Clan Mpi Trallhaad Collation

I (9
17 McHugh Craak Improvement. Ph*»a Z
€ D9

19 Hatanuaka * Sualtna Carpground
20  Zeprovetnants (ED 99)
21 Tanal Cajrpground Improvements

2 (Eu
21 Eagla River Accaaa/Pacllltlaa
24 (DY

25 Public Oaa and Voluntaar Cabin
X Cocivtruceloo (D 99)

27 Chana Rlvar Stata Recreational
22 Araa Improvements IED 99)
2

10 ceccee
n 03 LXXE:
2 Vessels He)or Maintenance (ED %)
13 Tag/Otolith Laboratory Ralocatlon/
14 Expansion (D d

3 Cryatal Laka Hatchary Water

24 Recirculation Syetea Construction

7 @2

DtpirtMQt of flab

Cheplrr 79 Paga |

Appropriation
Iterns
330.000
100000
10000

720.000
1AM3G

52,000

172.000
99.000

227.000

115.000

ey

275.000
500.000

1,000,000

Appropriation fund Sourcaa
Oanaral fund  Othar Punda
110000
100000

720.000

52,000

172,000
99,000

2000

115,000

1mam

275.000
500.000

500.000 500.000

HC3 CSSB 111irztl) . Sac. 19

1 Department of Pich and Game (cont.|

2 Appropriation  Appropriation fund Sourcaa
1 Allocations Ztaaa Oanaral fund  Othar Punda
4 Watarfovl Conservation and <2000 420.000
5 Enhancement Program (ED 99)
| Toklat Chuffl Salmon Restoration 2000 2000
7 (D9
| Sport Piah KvugvHDC and 170.000 +70,000
9  EnhancsMnt (ED %)
10 Assart and Protact tha Itata'a 100,003
11 Right to lianaga Alaska's Resources
2 ®%)
»a tht mntnt e fehe leyielaa— 4Kaa-4100,000 »4 eats spyrage*eel
T*fcuro

Peninsula/AleutlaiTa Salmon * Sandy 17,000
[ Rlvar Valr (ID 401
7 Paninoula/Alautlana Salmon * 591,000 991,000
| fockaya/Coho Slta Survey and
9 Paaaibllicy Studiaa (ED 40)
0 Briatol Day Salmon - Mood Rivar 95.000 59.000
1 reolt aooar projact (ED 40)
2 Baring Saa/Alautlana Crab  Adalt 14100 141,000
1 Rad and Brown Crab Suxvay (ED 40)
4 Econoaic Study of Jouthcantral 103.000
9 fiiharlaa (ED 99)
| Southaaat B lttar Crab Study (ED 99) 40.000 40,000
7 Public Accaaa Development (ED 99) 2.000.000 000 1.500.000
| Statavldo Pacilitiaa Maintenance/ 150.000 410.000
9 Rapair (ID 9 100,000 10000
0 Major Equipoen* Replacement eeil -
1Dugch ngb%r EmpIO)[/)*# NouaingGED 500,000 9000
2 Purchaaa (BD 40)
1 aacaeca °3a
. eeeeee Department of Publlo lafaty e
5 LN ]
| License Placaa/Drlvara Manuala/ 524,000 524.000
7 hicroflin Equipment (D %)

Chapter 79 Paga 19

HCS CJEB 111tfXH), SH#C. B



02/05/97

INQ-AR:  APPROPRIATION INQUIRY

APPROPRIATION NUMBER 40169 ACTIVE? YES CREATING RSN 03273
COA YEAR 1995 DATE START 07/01/93 UPDATE RSN 03431
ORIG YEAR 1994
TERM YEAR 1995

RS 2477 ASSERTION

DESCRIPTION SHORT:
PRUDHOE BAY RESERVOIR MODELS

DESCRIPTION LONG:

SEC 19 P. 18 L. 7
/1
BUDGET TYPE: CAPITAL
SESSION LAW REFERENCE: 9307901809

LOGICAL LEVEL NUMBER:
NEXT HIGHER LEVEL APPN:
REPORTS TO APPN PGM:
REPORTS TO APPN ORG:

APPROPRIATIONS
CHAPTER 79 SLA 1993

50 -
36443 (2015) -

CONTROL TYPE: T BGT FUND: 11100 - GENERAL FUND
REVENUE RECOGNITION? YES SPENDING APPROPRIATION?  YES
BUDGETING APPROPRIATION? YES CROSS STRUCTURE CNTRLS? NO
PHYSICAL LEVEL: 6 SEQUENCE: BEG 14264 END 14266
FOR NEXT APPROPRIATION ENTER==> NUMBER COA YEAR TERM YEAR
PF1=MENU 5=BASE 6=LOWER LEVELS 7=TOTAL BALANCES 8=CROSS STRUC CTRLS
PF9=CONTROL APPNS 10=AUTH RDCODES 11=TANAB



EXPEND AUTH BAL RPT, FY

APPROPRIATION EXPENDITURES BY ACCOUNT

40169-95 RS 2477 ASSERTION ORIG:94
COA:1996

s**
S**
g**
S**

S**

ENTITY NUMBER - DESCRIPTION

70000 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

72000
73000
74000
75000

TRAVEL

OTHER SRVCS & CHARGE
SUPPLIES

CAPITAL OUTLAY

FOR NEXT SECTION ENTER==> NUMBER
PF1=MENU

RRN:0029492 RSN:03774 12/12/96

HISTORICAL
APPROPRIATIONS (T B S R) FN:11100
RESTRICT AVAILABL

AUTHORIZ ENCUMBER EXPEND- BALANCE

720000 0 720000 0
6069 0 6069 0
688731 0 688731 0
8344 0 8344 0
16856 0 16856 0
YEAR LEVEL LIMIT

PF6=RPT REQUEST MAINTENANCE



*»,cr Project Daaign (O %L

kitry Guard Deferred Statewide
Mnn:«ninc« (ED 9)

kf.ry Guard Renewal and
Replacement (ED %9)

eceeoe [HHFI]’Hthl natural Reeou

crtaminated Sica Aaaaaamant/
Cleanup < Isabel Paaa Camp

tea IS)

Luxti*MiSSlon Village Work Crewe
(E0 9

Fire righting Equipment Upgrada/
Replacement (D %)

State Park Syatam Emergency
Repairs (ED 19

Stata Land Statua/Invantory
Oatabaaa (ID %)

Seological Hinarai Invantory
(D 9)

forest Resource Invantory (D %L

p
Jipicf 4 e 1

200000
10000
[0Ee eeececee
1SQ0 [S.000
500.000
200 50.000

50.000 50.000

125.000 125.000

600.000
100000

600.000
10000

HCS CSSI 16)(FIN), Sac. 10

1 Department ot Natural Reeourcee (cont.|
2 Appropriation
2 Allocation* Items
| National Historic Preservation 610.000
5  Fund/Federal Grsnta Program
6 @9
7 Land and Watar Conaarvaclon Fund 500.000
Fadaral Granta *Outdoor
9  Racraation Facilities (EO %9)
10 RS 2477 Aaaartlona and Happing )00.000
n @Y
12 Statawida Parks Safa Drinking 72.500
B Watar (D %)
14 Racordar'a Offica Equipmant 50.000
5 9
16 Stata Land Acquisition 265.000
17 Claaaification/Aaaaaamant (EO 99|
[l Foraat Practicaa Act 200.000
19  Effactivanaaa Raaaarch (EO %)
2 ...
yil eeeeee Qapartaant of rlob and Oaza < e
2 a.aee. aaa
23 Statawida Facilttiaa 300,000
24 Maintananca, Rapalr and
2% Replacement (ID 9
26 Arctlc-Yukan*J(uakokvin Salmon 200.000
27 Piaharlaa Stock Aaaaaamant
21 Equipmant (ID 9
29 Alaska Peninsula Chum and Coho 150.000
3 Salmon Stock Study/Kquipment
3 (B0 4)
32 rishariaa Raaourca Aaaaaamant 250,000
3B Vaaaala Maintananca (ED %)
34 Trail and Habitat Araa Clearing/ 350,000
3 Enhancement (CD 99)
36 Rural Fur Markat Protection/ 200,000

37 Development (00 @

Chapter U

=¥

Cerera®
fund

72.500
50,300

265.000

A0

300.000

150.000

250,000

Other

Fur.de

500.333

350.000

2C7.000

HCS CSSI 363(FIN). Sac. 1z

1 iapartnan*
2

3

4 Public ACx
5 resiUt
5  Renovat
7 Aaaert/Prc
9  Manage
3 urdar A
13

1

P

1) Licanaa PI1
U Y
15 Aircraft 1
16 Repairs
17 Fish and '«
16 Enforce
19 (B0 )
20 Alaska Sta
2l Replaco
2 Fiah and w
2)  Equipma
21 Statawida
25 Mainter
% oo
4 ceoe
Z_ LN ]
29 Statawida
10 Amy C
u Prog
D Fadaral
2 Admi
4 Ganaral
K Fad*
16 ®

CVaptrr 4



'INQ-AR:  APPROPRIATION INQUIRY

APPROPRIATION NUMBER 40219 ACTIVE? YES
COA YEAR 1997 DATE START 07/01/94
ORIG YEAR 1995
TERM YEAR 1997

DESCRIPTION SHORT:
DESCRIPTION LONG:

RS2477 ASSERTIONS &
LWCF -

FEDERAL GRANTS - OUTDOOR

RECREATION FACILITIES

SEC. 10 P. 11 L. 7
BUDGET TYPE: CAPITAL
SESSION LAW REFERENCE: 9400401110
LOGICAL LEVEL NUMBER: 50 - APPROPRIATIONS
NEXT HIGHER LEVEL APPN: 36440 (2015) - CHAPTER 4 FSSLA 1994
REPORTS TO APPN PGM:
REPORTS TO APPN ORG:
CONTROL TYPE: T BGT FUND: 11100 - GENERAL FUND
REVENUE RECOGNITION? YES SPENDING APPROPRIATION? YES
BUDGETING APPROPRIATION? YES CROSS STRUCTURE CNTRLS? NO
PHYSICAL LEVEL: 6 SEQUENCE: BEG 14146 END 14148
FOR NEXT APPROPRTATION ENTER==> NUMBER COA YEAR TERM YEAR
PF1I=MENU 5=BASE 6=LOWER LEVELS 7=TOTAL BALANCES 8=CROSS STRUC CTRLS
PF9=CONTROL APPNS 10=AUTH RDCODES 11=TANAB

02/05/97

CREATING RSN 03697
UPDATE RSN 03814



EXPEND AUTH BAL RPT, FY RRN: 0029492 RSN: 03816 02/04/97
APPROPRIATION EXPENDITURES BY ACCOUNT

40219-97 RS2477 ASSERTIONS & ORIG:95 APPROPRIATIONS (T B S R) FN:11100
COA:1997 RESTRICT AVAILABL

ENTITY NUMBER - DESCRIPTION AUTHORIZ ENCUMBER EXPEND-  BALANCE
S** 70000 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 300000 0 288629 11371
S** 72000 TRAVEL 2615 0 2917 302-
S** 73000 OTHER SRVCS & CHARGE 295849 0 284186 11663
S** 74000 SUPPLIES 1535 0 1525 10
FOR NEXT SECTION ENTER==> NUMBER YEAR LEVEL LIMIT

PF1=MENU PF6=RPT REQUEST MAINTENANCE
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Chapter 123

11,963,100)

(U) The sum of SI,605,(100 is appropriated from the general fund to the Department
of l.uw to pay the judgment in Roger Dergcr, t/li/a Fronlier Einuncial Services v, .Stale of
Alaska. Department of Revenue (1AN-89-8710 CI) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 19%.

te) The sum of 5500,000 is appropriated from llie general fund to the Department of
l.aw. federal relations component, for litigation related to the protection of the slate's
jurisdiction and constitutional rights in issue* related to accelerated navigable waters quiet title
actions, and RS 2477 assertions and litigation for the fiscal ycurs ending June 30, 19%. and
1997, as follows;

PURPOSE APPROPRIATION
Accelerated navigable waters quiet title action* 5300.000
RS 2477 assertions and litigation 200,000

«Sec, 85. DEPARTMENT OH MILITARY AND VETERANS' AFFAIRS, (&) The sum
of SH,000,000 is appropriated from the general fund to die Department of Military and
Veterans' AfTairs for deposit in the military retirement trust fund (AS 26.0S.228) for increased
costs for national guard retirement for the Fiscal year ending June 30, 1996.

(b) The sum of 31.557,300 is appropriated from the general fund to the disaster relief
fund (AS 26.23.300) for costs associated with declared disasters.

 See. 86. DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, (2) The sum of 55,258,600

is appropriated from the general fund to the Depanmeni of Natural Resource* for Fire
suppression activities for the Fiscal year ending June 30, 1996.

(b) The sum of 5270.000 is appropriated from the general fund to the Depanmeni of
Natural Resources fur navigable waters assertions, accelerated navigable waters quiet title
actions, conveyance monitoring, access protection, and protection of fish and wildlife
management jurisdiction on navigahle waters for the Fi*cal years ending June 30. 1996, and
1997.

(c) The sum of 550.000 is appropriated from the general fund to the Depanmeni of
Natural Resources for RS 2477 assertions and RS 2477 litigation suppori for the Fiscal years
ending June 30. 19%, and 1997.

 Sec. 87. DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, (a) The sum of 5150,000 is appropriated
Irom the corporate rcccijHs of the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation to the Depanmeni of
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1 Revenue, Alaska Housing Finance Corporation, to cover unanticipated lease costs for the liscal
2 year ending June 30, 1996.

3 (h) To change funding sources for the appropriations made in the Department ol
4 Revenue. P.evcnuc Operations, and allocated to the Alaska Stale Pension Investment Board.
5 (1) sec. 49, ch. 94, SLA 1995. page 47. line 15. is umendcd to read
6
7
8
9

BeneFtls Systems Receipts 112.900
[45.900]
(2) sec. 49, ch 94, SLA 1995, page 47. line 17. is amended to read
Public Employees 12.818.100
10 Retirement Trust Fund (12.885.100|
n (c) The sum of 5103,800 is appropriated from the permanent fund dividend fund

12 (AS 43.23.045) to the Depanmeni of Revenue in cover increased cnnlracluul services for the

13 Ftscul year ending June 30, 1996.

14 e Sec, 88. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC FACILITIES. The
15 sum of $4,010,000 is appropriated to the Department of Transportation and Public Facilities
16  for highwuy and bridge repair resulting from the southcenlrul flood disaster from the following

17 sources:

18 General fund 51.010.000

19 Federal receipt 3,000,000
LBOISLIVTfVDPLIPOOr AHD'AUOMY1 Tire sum of is apjwa

21 from the generaTThwijgtbe Legislative Budget and Audit Comrjjiuar*BTastudy that
22 compares the salaries and benefdrw”uic*mploytcj**<rrfleappfopriate public and private
23 markets in Alaska and the Pacifjs»WariWCcs6 ThesiuTTy," including the request for proposals.
24 bid awanL iiijjJ jjawngnrkpTpdiiet is to be overseen by a steeringconftrmuc”onsisting of
2Jj/K af B Tiiiaankan appainaad by >hi»4agialamw and ganamaa.' .-

26 « SC. 90. MISCELLANEOUS CLAIMS, (a) The following amounts arc appropriated
27 from the general fund to the following departments to pay miscellaneous claims and stale-
28 dated warrants for the Fiscal year ending June 30, 19%:

29 DEPARTMENT APPROPRIATION
30 Administration 5 43563
31 Community and Regional Affairs 468
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ANALYSIS OF INTERIM DEPARTMENTAL POLICY ON R.S. 2477
ISSUED JANUARY 22, 1997

On January 22, 1997, Secretary of the Interior Bruce Babbitt “revoked" the
Department of Intericjr's prior policy regarding R.S. 2477 rights-of-way, which form the
bulk of the rural transportation network in the western public lands states. The revoked
policy (the "Hodel Policy*), set forth by Secretary Donald Hodel in December of 1988,
was an attempt to reflect long-established law regarding these rights-of-way, which are
typically owned and managed by state and local governmental entities. Because of its
reasonable approximation to the law, the Hodel Policy encountered little opposition.

By contrast, die Babbitt memorandum attempts to set policy which is inconsistent
with established law. | However, the Babbitt memo cannot stand up to scrutiny, because
the Secretary of Interior is not free to substitute his judgment for that of Congress by
ignoring its statutes, nor can he properly set policy which contradicts established legal
doctrines. The Babbitt memo is also insupportable because it attempts to set policy which
is in violation of the current published regulations of the Department of Interior, which
explicitly provide that if administration bj the Department would diminish or reduce any
rights conferred by die R.S. 2477 grant, the provisions of the grant apply. 43 C.F.R.

§ 2801.4. But the Babbitt memo sets forth an approach which is clearly designed to
diminish or do away With rights conferred under R.S. 2477.

The Babbitt memo must be considered in light of the actions of Department of the
Interior under this administration, which have been focused at undercutting the ability of
states and counties toiutilize and manage their transportation infrastructure, contrary to
more than one-hundred years of Interior policy and court rulings. Interior has battled to
revoke these rights-of-way in Congress, in the courts, and by way of attempted
promulgation of departmental regulations. Due to substantial public interest in protecting
these vital transportation links and in honoring established legal rights, those efforts have
largely been unsuccessful. As the Babbitt memo states. Congress has prohibited Interior
from giving effect to its proposed regulations regarding R.S. 2477 rights-of-way. While
the memo asserts that it is not a rulemaking, in practical effect, it provides guidance to
the Department whicli would implement the fundamental purposes of the proposed
regulations and thereby constitutes a new effort to find a way to undercut established law
by administrative fiatJ

Some of the flaws in the position adopted in the Babbitt memo (also reflected in
the Department’s proposed rulemaking) are addressed briefly below.

No approval by the federal government has ever been required to exercise the
rights granted under R.S. 2477. In fact, Interior regulations in place over the last half
century stated, "No application should be filed under this act, as no action on the part of
the Federal Government is necessary." Once a right-of-way was established, it became a
property right of the holder. The treatment of these vested property rights as "claims”
has no legal merit, j

No federal statute has granted the Department of Interior the authority to regulate,
adjudicate or otherwise interfere with the proper exercise of these rights. However,
implicit in the Babbitt memo, and explicit in the Department's actions in Utah, is the



threat that any exercise of the rights without prior judicial or Departmental approval will
be met with harsh opposition by the Department, including the filing of burdensome and
costly lawsuits.

The "approvall" scheme reflected in defacto Departmental policy, now stated in
the Babbitt memo, arid as currently being carried out in Utah, is one of the most insidious
aspects of Interior’s attack. Justice Department attorneys, acting on behalf of the
Department, have recently asserted in court that holders of R.S. 2477 rights-of-way can
do nothing on these rights-of-way without prior authorization from the federal
government. But, as the Babbitt memo declares. Department personnel have been
instructed to offer no recognition of any R.S. 2477 right-of-way, no matter how clearly
valid, unless the rightk>f-way holder gives evidence of a "demonstrated, compelling, and
immediate need.” Thus, Babbitt is creating (and has been implementing in Utah) a
scenario where Department personnel say, in effect: ™You can’t exercise your right
unless we acknowledge that it's valid (or you go to court to prove it), and we are
prohibited from taking action to acknowledge its validity. Therefore, if you exercise your
right, the United States may sue you." Obviously, the Department is picking and
choosing which roadsj to sue on, targeting rural counties in Utah which have been
unwilling to submit to these illegal policies.

The memorandum states that the agency will determine whether a right-of-way
meets criteria concerning "withdrawals and reservations,” "construction,1 and "highway."
Given Interior’s stated hostility toward existing law defining those terms, it should be
expected that the criteria will be construed according to newly-created definitions
reflected in the proposed regulations. Watch for Interior to decree a narrow definition of
"construction” inconsistent with clear federal case law. Watch for Interior to attempt to
invalidate many R.S. i2477 rights-of-way through its new definition of the term
"highway," also inconsistent with federal court rulings.

Watch for Interior to disregard the thousands of legal interpretations concerning
this grant offered by state courts, many of which have been relied upon by the federal
courts. The memorandum asserts that state law will be applied only "to the extent that it
is consistent with federal law,” The problem with this statement is that, because federal
law has adopted statellaw as the rule of decision for R.S. 2477, no federai law exists -
for now. Therefore, for the Department to determine whether state law is "consistent
with federal law™ it must first make up the federal law.

The Babbitt memo sets forth an illegal policy, which will be carried by
Departmental employees to state and local governments across the West as the only way
to deal with R.S. 24717 rights-of-way. To the extent that these actions are successful in
confusing and intimidating right-of-way holders, the Department will be successful in its
ongoing attempt to defeat R.S. 2477 rights-of-way across the West.
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Assistant Secretary, Fish and Wildlife and Paries
Assistant Secretary, Lind and Minerals Management
Assistant Secretary, Indian Affairs

Assistant Secretary, Water and Science

Interim Departmental Policy on Revised Statute S47'7 Trent of Right-Of-Way
for Public Highways; Revocation of December 7, 1988 Policy

Revised Statute 2477, which provided that 'Tt]he right of way for the construction of
highways over public lands, not reserved for public uses, is hereby granted,” was repealed
on October 21, 1976, by the Federai Land Poiicy and Management Act (FLPMA), 43
U.S.C. § 1701 et «ca. FLPMA did not terminate valid righu-of-way established under R.S.
2477 prior to its repeal. The existence and extent of valid rights-of-way previously
established pursuant to R.S. 2477 remains an issue In some places.

-taccs or local governments asserting that R.S, 2477 rights-of-way exist on federal lane.: :an
In appropriate situations tile a lawsuit in federal court seeking to establish the validity of that
assertion. In the alternative or in advance of filing such a lawsuit, die Department of the
Interior may also be asked to give its views on such assertions.

On December 7, 1988, Secretary Hodel signed a memorandum that discussed hit, policy for
making determinations whether the Department Would recognize claims for rights-of-way
under R.S. 2477. That policy was not promulgated according :0 rulemaking procedures ard
is aot a rule. In fact,- because the Depanmeni has aoc been nuking such determinations in
recent years, that poiicy has not been carried out for several years. The purpose of diis
memo is to revoke the 1988 policy and establish a revised polic” for carrying out any
determinations the Department might be called upon to nuke regarding R.3. 2477.

Background

Ac the request of Congress, the Department submitted a Report to Congress on R.S. 2477 in
June 1993. In accordance with that Report's recommendations, the Department determined
chat regulations should be written for R.S. 2477, and a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking was
published in 1994. 59 Fed. Reg. 39,216 (August 1, 1994), Therearter, Congress attached a
provision to the Department’s appropriation for fiscal year 1996 that prohibited using funds
appropriated by that statute for "developing, promulgating, and thereafter implementing a
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rule concerning righta-of-way under section 2477 at' the Reviwd Statutes.” Pub. L. 104-134,
§ 110, 110 Shat. 1321-177 (1996). The Department's appropriation for fiscal year 1997
permits die publication of final regulations-buc says they rball not take -'fleet unless
"expressly authorized by an Act of Congress subsequent to the date of enactment of this
Act." Pub. L. 104-208, § 100, 110 Jcit. 30C9 (1996).

| addressed the issue of ‘vhether the Department should continue to make determinations

regarding R.S. 2477 claims in my May 28, 1993, letter to Congress transmitting the
Department's Report:  "Until final rules are effective, | have instructea the Bureau of Land

Management co defer any processing of R.S, 2477 assertions except in cases where there is a
compelling, and imir.-riiate need rb make mch determinations.” This

Instruction is still in effect. | t
Revised Policy on R.S. 2477 Righta-af-way Determinations

Those making claims of the existence of valid R.S. 2477 rights-of-way continue to have the
option of seeking to establish the validity of their claims in court. Nevertheless, it is
7' -u- Department * _red. T, of f:ml riles effect. := m=ke
such determinations on the basis that such a demonstrated, coraneillng, and immediate need
is claimed to exist. If so, until final rules are published and take effect, determinations
regarding R.S. 2477 rights-of-way will be made by the Secretary of the Interior, in
consultation with the appropriate Interior agency, according to the following policy:

1. Claims. An entity wishing the Secretary or any agencies of the Department of the
Interior to maxs a determination whether an R.S. 2477 right-of-way exists shail file a written
request with the Interior agency having jurisdiction over the lauds underlying the asserted
right-of-way, along with an explanation of why there IS a compelling and immediate need for
such a determination. The request should be accompanied by documents and maps that the
maty wishes the agency to consider in making its recommendation to te Secretary. If,
based on the information provided, the agency does not believe t compelling and immediate
need for the determination exists, it should without ftmher examination recommend the

Secretary defer processing until final rales arc effective.

2. Withdrawals and'Reservations. The agency shall consult the public land records
maintained by the Bureau of Land Management to determine me status of the Lands over
which the claimed right-of-way passes. If such lands were withdrawn, reserved, or
otherwise unavailable pursuant to R.S. 2477 at the time that the highway giving rise to the
claim of an R.Z. 2477 .-.ant-oi-way was aucgcdly constructed ana remained unavailable
through October 21, 1976, ' agency v.ll recommend the Secretary deny the claim.

3. Construcnon. If the “n&s vere not withdrawn, reserved, or ocnerwisc unavailable
pursuant to R.S. 2477, the agency shall examine all available documents and maps and
Derform an on-site examination to determine whether construction an the alleged right-of-way
bad occurred prior to the repeal of R.S. 2777 oa October 21. 1976. If the agency
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determines chat construction did not occur, the agency will recommend the Secretary deny
the claim.

4. Highway. The agency shall evaluate whether the alleged right-of-way constitutes a
highway. A highway is a thoroughfare used prior to October 21, 1976, by the public for the
passage of vehicles carrying people or goods from place to place. If the agency determines
that the alleged right-of-way does not constitute a highway, the agency will recommend die

Secretary deny the claim.

5. Hole of State Law, In making its recommendations, the agency mall apply state law in
:r. October 21, 1976, to the extent that It is consistent with federal law. The agency

will in no case recommend approval of claims that uo not comply « —4Ts requir-mencs of
applicable state law.

6. Secretary's Determination. The agency will make recommendations on the above-
described issues to the Secretary. The Secretary will approve or disapprove those

recommendations.

The December 7, 198S policy, including attachment 1, is hereby revcxed.
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